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Qur Vision

The EOC will create, with the support of the community, an
environment where there is no barrier to equal opportunities
and no discrimination.

Our Mission

To promote equality of opportunity between men and
women, between persons with and without a disability, and
irrespective of family status;

To eliminate discrimination on the grounds of gender, marital
status, pregnancy, disability and family status through
legislative provisions, administrative measures and public
education;

To eliminate sexual harassment, and harassment and
vilification of persons with a disability.
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It is indeed my privilege to be reporting on the activities of
the EOC for the 2004/05 financial year as Chairperson of the
Commission. | wish to thank my predecessors and former
EOC Members in the past nine years for contributing to
the Commission’s solid foundation to enable us to deliver
our responsibilities. | should like to reassure them that the
commitment will continue, as our new Members and myself
remain steadfast in carrying out our duties.

Our Role

Equal opportunity is a benchmark of progress in a modern
society. | think many in our community today will agree that the
work of the Commission has raised public expectations, about
protecting rights for persons with disability, ensuring women
and men enjoy equal status in our society, and that people
with family status should not be discriminated. In our efforts to
eliminate discrimination, our role continues to evolve.

Over the years, many of our stakeholder groups have engaged
in an ongoing dialogue with us about what that role should
be. Some consider that we have done too much, while others
feel that we should do more. However, it is important that the
Commission should always remain fair and impartial in our
approach to fulfil our mission and to be regarded as such,
in order to enjoy the full confidence of those who seek our
assistance. And for the EOC to discharge its duties properly,
only an independent Commission can be seen to work for
everyone in Hong Kong. We shall continue to demonstrate
that we have the capability to exercise the Commission’s
functions, true to the letters and spirit of our laws as well
as to ensure that Hong Kong fulfills its obligations under the
relevant international treaties.
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Throughout 2004/05, the Commission has widened its
strategic relationships with a broad spectrum of key
stakeholders in the public, private and community sectors to
eliminate discrimination. This may be taken as an indicator
of mainstreaming equal opportunities, since many more
organizations are now working along side with us to advocate
our values.

In the public sector, we have strengthened our cooperation
with the Women’s Commission (WoC) to prevent sexual
harassment in the universities. As education is the key to
empowerment, we are also working with the WoC and the
Curriculum Development Institute in curriculum reform, to
intertwine equal opportunity and gender mainstreaming
concepts into the school curriculum. Together with the WoC,
planning for a survey of family friendly policies has begun
with completion expected early next year. This is a relatively
new subject in Hong Kong, but it is one which heralds a
new dimension in work-life balance and therefore warrants
more research.

To assist civil servants in delivering quality service to the
public, the Commission has joined hands with the Civil
Service Bureau to develop two e-learning training modules
for civil servants, on the subject of disability sensitivity and
the equal opportunity ordinances. The self-learning modules
are aimed to raise the sensitivity, understanding and interest
in gender, race, disability and equal opportunities issues,
so that frontline officers would be better equipped to serve
the public.

Education is a recognized tool not only in changing attitudes,
removing stereotypes and enhancing understanding, it also
empowers individuals. Public education is a major area
of our work, and a variety of programmes are focused on
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different sectors. Amongst the many initiatives conducted
this year, we produced a user-friendly teaching kit for Hong
Kong’s secondary schools, to help educators teach about
equal opportunities in the classroom situation. Based on
a successful TV docu-drama series, the self-help kit is a
guide for teachers to conduct in-depth discussion and
understanding of the three anti-discrimination ordinances
during liberal studies and social science classes.

Whereas different aspects of the Commission’s work have
impacted on individuals’ lives in one way or another, it is
generally regarded that our legal actions are one of the most
effective ways to produce change. In the case of the teacher
who was dismissed by a private school after the school
learned that he had cancer and had to receive treatment,
the plaintiff (assisted by the EOC) won and was awarded
HK$198,000 in damages. This case sends out a clear and
important message for employers to act reasonably, and to
take genuine and practical steps to accommodate employees
who become unable to work because of their disabilities.

Insurance issues under the anti-discrimination legislation
was the subject of a public discussion paper published
earlier by the EOC. Subsequently, the Hong Kong Federation
of Insurers (HKFI) formed a task force to look into the issues
and concerns raised. We provided input for the HKFI’s
revised draft Code of Practice on Genetic Testing as well as
its draft Statement of Best Practice on Applying Pre-existing
Conditions and Exclusions. The Code and Statement were
finalized in early 2005.

The Commission and Hong Kong’s NGOs share a close
working relationship. This year, we joined with the Association
of Women with Disabilities Hong Kong, to work with the
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Department of Health to improve awareness and accessibility
of public health services. The initiative will impact on women
with disabilities, removing barriers for those seeking essential
medical services, and a better quality of life.

It has been a year of consolidation and intense activity for
Members and staff at the Commission. The government
appointed Independent Panel of Inquiry submitted its report
on the EOC to the Legislative Council in early 2005. The
Commission Members are now working closely with staff to
take forward the recommendations contained in that report
as well as those in the Commission’s internal reviews, with
the objective to improve the transparency and accountability
of the EOC.

The government’s move to legislate against race
discrimination will be a significant step for Hong Kong. The
EOC welcomes this initiative. In anticipation of accepting
responsibility for its implementation, the EOC is currently
preparing a plan of action to assist all stakeholders in
understanding and complying with the new law when it
is enacted.
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Having taken up my new role as Chairperson of the EOC at the
beginning of the year, | have been deeply impressed by the
amount of interest and support the community has displayed
in the Commission’s work. To me, the reason is simple.
There is value in eliminating discrimination and promoting
equal opportunities because it empowers individuals, it can
improve lives and it means better business.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our dedicated
partners and supporters whom we have had the good
fortune of working together this year, perhaps in particular
the mentors in our Career Challenge programme, who
have committed themselves in helping Hong Kong’s young
people to break stereotypes and combat discrimination. | am
confident that in the years to come, many more will share our
vision to build a fairer society in which we can all live in peace
and harmony.
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Raymond Tang
Chairperson, Equal Opportunities Commission
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Preventing Sexual Harassment
in Universities

In 2003, in view of information brought to the EOC’s attention
with regard to various activities in Hong Kong’s universities,
we conducted a study on sexual harassment within these
institutions. The findings showed that various activities
conducted at orientation camps, including the use of slogans,
contained sexual content and were highly insensitive, leading
to a “sexually hostile environment”. While such an environment
is unlawful in the workplace, the legislation at present does
not extend to educational establishments. Following an earlier
proposal by the EOC for the government to amend the SDO
to prohibit such an environment in education, we are given to
understand that the ordinance will be amended soon.

In view of the study and its subsequent findings, we organized
a Forum on Preventing Sexual Harassment in Universities
in conjunction with the Women’s Commission (WoC) in
August 2004, to share the results of the study and discuss
how we could move forward to prevent sexual harassment
in Hong Kong’s universities. Forty participants, including
representatives from the administration and student unions
of Hong Kong’s eight universities, non-governmental
organizations, the EOC and WoC attended the Forum.

There was general consensus that the issue of sexual
harassment in universities should be tackled seriously, with
the need to introduce sexual harassment policies as well
as more transparent complaint handling procedures in the
institutions. In addition, the government was urged to speed
up the process of amending the SDO. It was also agreed
that the Forum should be held regularly as it provides an
excellent opportunity to raise awareness of the issue and
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clarify the concept of sexual harassment. Participants saw
the Forum as an useful platform for effective collaboration
and coordination on how best to prevent sexual harassment
in Hong Kong’s education establishment.

Following the Forum, the EOC and WoC co-organized an
Orientation Camp Game Design Contest to Promote Gender
Awareness among Hong Kong’s university students in July
2005. The aim was to break down gender stereotypes and
promote understanding of gender equality, in order to enable
students to learn and form attitudes in an environment free of
sexual harassment.

Reforming the Academic Structure for
Secondary and Higher Education

Responding to the consultation paper on Reforming the
Academic Structure for Senior Secondary Education and
Higher Education — Actions for Investing in the Future,
issued by the Education and Manpower Bureau (EMB) in
October 2004, we welcomed the new reform and made a
submission to the EMB. We were pleased to note that most
of our concerns were addressed in the EMB’s subsequent
action plan.
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The Commission had suggested that gender, disability and
multicultural mainstreaming be adopted as a long-term
strategy across all disciplines. The EMB undertook to continue
the integration of students with special education needs
(SEN) and ethnic minorities students into ordinary schools in
so far as they could benefit from such an education.

Inresponse to the EOC’s request for solid steps to be set out to
redress any imbalances and inequalities in the new education
system and that protection be offered to disadvantaged
groups, the EMB declared its commitment to provide every
student with 12 years of schooling and promised to review its
policy in relation to financial assistance.

With regard to the proposed new subject, Liberal Studies,
we are ready and will provide support in the training of
teachers and students on equal opportunities issues.
Meanwhile, our hotline, help services as well as our resource
library and website are readily available to assist teachers
and students.

Integrating Equal Opportunity Principles
into the School Curriculum

Education is crucial in eliminating discrimination. As such,
we work closely with the Curriculum Development Institute
(CDI) of the EMB, seeking to integrate the subject of equal
opportunities into the school curriculum. At ongoing meetings
held with CDI, we study ways to enhance understanding
and acceptance of equal opportunity concepts into the
school curriculum.

13
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Discussions with Hong Kong’s publishers began in July
2004 to consider a more comprehensive representation of
both genders as well as the disadvantaged in Hong Kong’s
textbooks. So far, work is aimed at presenting a broader
spectrum of equal opportunity concepts in Hong Kong’s
teaching materials. All parties concerned have agreed to
work together to incorporate diversity, gender awareness
and equal opportunity values into Hong Kong’s school books
and curriculum in the future.

Insurance Issues under the
Anti-discrimination Ordinances

In early 2004, our Chairperson explored with representatives
of the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers (HKFI) to follow up
on the EOC’s Discussion Paper on Insurance Issues under
the Anti-discrimination Legislation. Released in 2002/03,
the discussion paper was published to gain views from the
industry with regard to various insurance practices that could

raise concern under the anti-discrimination ordinances. As a

result, the HKFI formed a task force to look into the matter

and take action on concerns raised. These included:

e Drafting of a position paper on the possibility of
establishing an Insurance Ombudsman based on our
proposal;

e Reviewing the Code of Practice on Genetic Testing; and

e Drafting guidelines on pre-existing conditions and blanket
exclusions for members.

We maintained a regular dialogue with the HKFI during the
year, providing input both for the HKFI’s revised draft Code
of Practice on Genetic Testing as well as its draft Statement
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of Best Practice on Applying Pre-existing Conditions and
Exclusions. The Code and Statement were finalized in
early 2005. It is observed that the insurance community
has provided a wider range of products and coverage.
Insurers are urged to provide protection by adjusting the
premium level or the insured amount instead of outrightly
declining applications from people with certain conditions.
Yet there may be further areas for cooperation with the
insurance community, such as education of agents, insurers
and consumers.

Equal Pay for Work of Equal Value (EPEV)

A series of meetings were held in 2004 among members of
the task force that was set up to steer the consultancy study
on EPEV. They provided valuable views and comments on
the final draft of the Consultant’s Report which followed the
study conducted on EPEV in Hong Kong’s public sector.
Since the appointment of our new Chairperson, Raymond
Tang, in December 2004 and our new Members in May 2005,
the issues raised in the study and Consultant’s Report will be
studied further to understand the complex issues at hand,
in order to recommend the best and most appropriate way
forward. The EOC is fully aware of the wider implications and
far-reaching consequences of the future direction to be taken
on this subject, as such thorough consideration will be given
to all aspects of EPEV before a final decision is reached.

Review of Certain Provisions of the
Copyright Ordinance

In December 2004, the Government issued the document
Review of Certain Provisions of the Copyright Ordinance for
public consultation. Major issues involved in the consultation

15
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exercise were whether there should be any amendment to,
and if yes how these should be made, to the provisions on
copyright exemption. The Government has undertaken to
improve certain “permitted acts” in provisions within the
Copyright Ordinance for visually impaired people, such as
the transcribing of copyrighted work into specialized formats
to improve accessibility for this specialized group of people.

Whilst welcoming the Government’s effort to address the
needs of the visually impaired, our submission in response
to the consultation document pointed out that the needs of
people with disabilities (PWDs) are diverse, depending on the
type and degree of disability, as well as the various access
devices that are available in overcoming these disabilities. For
example, persons with hearing impairment need audio work
transcribed into written text while people with limited finger
movement require publications to be reprinted on easy-to-
flip pages. We also suggested that a separate exercise be
carried out to consult PWDs and related NGOs on their needs
and the most suitable exemptions for PWDs with regard to
the ordinance.

In response to this suggestion, two consultation meetings
were held in early 2005 with relevant NGOs to gain their direct
views. In view of this positive outcome, we can see that our
response has highlighted our role, in mainstreaming disability
considerations into the Government’s legislative and policy
making processes.

The International Covenant on Economic,
Social and Cultural Rights (ICESCR)

The EOC submitted its report on Hong Kong’s Second Report
before the 34" Session of the Committee on Economic, Social
and Cultural Rights (ICESCR). The ICESCR has applied to
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Hong Kong since 1976, and the Basic Law of the HKSAR
states that the provisions of the ICESCR as applied to Hong
Kong, shall remain in force and shall be implemented through
the laws of the HKSAR. The report, submitted to the 34®
Session of the Committee on Economic, Social and Cultural
Rights in Geneva, therefore highlighted the work that has
been carried out in Hong Kong to meet our international
obligations under the Covenant, since the First Report was
submitted in 2001.

Our submission urged the HKSAR Government to speed
up the legislative process so that legislation against racial
discrimination could be extended to the private sector as
soon as practicable. The EOC recommended that the HKSAR
Government should consider setting up a single independent
human rights commission in Hong Kong through careful
planning and wide public consultation, so that the various
aspects of human rights can be properly catered for in a
more cost-effective manner.

17
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Under Hong Kong’s three anti-discrimination ordinances, it
is unlawful to discriminate against anyone on the grounds
of sex, marital status, pregnancy, disability or family status.
Behaviour such as sexual harassment, or harassment
and vilification on the grounds of disability, are unlawful
under the Sex Discrimination Ordinance and the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance.

The employment-related provisions of the ordinances
provide protection, not only to existing employees but
also to job applicants, agents and contractors. They also
cover activities relating to vocational training, employment
agencies, partnership admissions, professional bodies
and trade unions. The non-employment related provisions
offer coverage in areas ranging from education and the
provision of goods or services to participation in clubs
and sporting activities, the management of premises and
government activities.

Enquiries

During the year, the EOC continued to work with the public as
they approached us with their enquiries and complaints on a
range of issues relating to the different kinds of discrimination
in Hong Kong. In our first full year of operation, from April
1997 to March 1998, we recorded a total of 7,284 enquiries
consisting of 5,670 general and 1,614 specific enquiries.
In 2004/2005, the figure had nearly doubled to 13,341 with
7,035 general and 6,306 specific enquiries.

General enquiries relate to our activities and the provisions
of Hong Kong’s anti-discrimination legislation, whilst specific
enquiries cover incident-related questions. Of the 6,306
specific enquiries received, 1,324 were related to the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (SDO), 2,800 to the Disability
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Figure 1. Specific Enquiries received from 1 April 2004 to 31
March 2005 (Total Number: 6,306)
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FSDO DDO

430 (7%)

ZEENIH

On the work of the EOC

Discrimination Ordinance (DDO) and 157 to the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (FSDO). A further 430 focused on
the work of the EOC, while the remaining 1,595 enquiries,
covering areas such as age, race, sexual orientation and
religion, fell outside our jurisdiction. (See Figure 1).

Complaints and Investigations

Anyone who feels that he or she has been treated unlawfully
under Hong Kong’s anti-discrimination legislation can seek
redress by lodging a complaint in writing, either personally
or through a representative, with the EOC. First of all,
when investigating the complaint, we look into the facts of
each case with both parties being given the opportunity to
comment and respond to the allegations made. Then, we
endeavour to resolve the matter through conciliation, helping
the parties involved to reach a settlement. If a settlement
cannot be reached, we are able to consider other forms of
assistance if the complainant makes an application to take
the matter further. We look at each application individually,
considering issues of principle as well as the ability of the
applicant to deal with the case unaided. Assistance granted
can include advice, legal assistance or any other assistance
deemed appropriate.

Complaints Handled

During the vyear, we received complaints from 449
complainants against 534 respondents involving 562 cases
of alleged unlawful acts, a decrease from the 854 complaints
receivedin2003/04 from 500 complainants. Of the complaints,
195 were received under the SDO, 343 under the DDO and
24 under the FSDO. (See Figure 2). Together with those carried
forward from previous years, we investigated a total of 789
complaints, representing a decrease of 31% as compared
to 1,151 in the previous year (See Figure 3). However, this has
meant a higher conciliation rate between complainants and
respondents, rising to 69% during the year as compared with
53% in the previous twelve months. The higher number of

*2. 200494 A 1H£20055%3 831 A A EE N IRFHAE (562 °R)
Figure 2. Number of Cases of Complaint Investigation received from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 562)
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complaints and cases handled in 2003/04 year was attributed
to the SARS epidemic, which resulted in a rush of enquiries
and complaints from those directly affected by the panic
within the community.

In 2004/05, we completed investigations on 593 cases of
alleged unlawful behaviour (See Figure 3a). Of this number,
261 proceeded to conciliation, with 181 reaching successful
settlement. The remaining 80 cases were unsuccessful (See
Figure 3b).

Complaint cases that do not proceed to conciliation are
discontinued for a variety of reasons. This happens if the act
in question is not unlawful, the complainant no longer wants
to pursue the complaint, or if a period of over 12 months
has passed since the act was committed. Investigations also
cease if the dispute is resolved through other means, or if
the EOC considers the complaint to be frivolous, vexatious,
misconceived or lacking in substance. A total of 332
complaints in this category were discontinued (See Figure 4).
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Figure 3. Number of Cases of Complaint Investigation handled from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 789)
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Figure 3a. Number of Cases of Complaint Investigation
concluded from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005
(Total number: 593)
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Figure 3b. Cases Proceeding to Conciliation from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 261)
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SDO-related Complaints

e A total of 259 employment-related allegations were
investigated. Pregnancy discrimination continued
to be the major cause for complaint with 112 cases
(43%), followed by 94 (36%) sexual harassment cases
(See Figure 5).

e |nvestigations were made into 27 non-employment
related allegations; 14 (52%) of which were related to
sexual harassment (See Figure 6).

DDO- related Complaints

e A total of 471 allegations were investigated, consisting
of 323 employment-related and 148 non-employment
related cases.

e Among both the employment-related and
non-employment related cases handled, disability
discrimination was the single largest cause for complaint,
accounting for 421 (89%) of the total (See Figures 7 and 8).
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Figure 4. Discontinued Cases by Reason from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 332)
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Figure 5. Employment Related Allegations investigated under the SDO from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 259)
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Figure 6. Non-employment Related Allegations investigated under the SDO from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 27)
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e During the year, a total of 32 FSDO allegations were
investigated, 24 (75%) of which were employment-related
and eight (25%) were non-employment related (See
Figure 9). The majority (58%) of the allegations in the
employment field were related to dismissal on the grounds
of family status.

EOC-initiated Investigations

We also take action on complaints with regard to unlawful
acts brought to our attention by third parties, or aggrieved
individuals who do not wish to be involved in the investigation
or conciliation process. Under these circumstances, the
Commission approaches the concerned parties to inquire
into the matter, explain the relevant legislation, and advise
that they rectify the situation. During the year, we handled 32
such cases, 16 under the SDO and 18 under the DDO. No
complaints in this category were received under the FSDO.
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Applications for Legal Assistance

If a lodged complaint has not been settled, the EOC has
the power to grant assistance to applicants who wish
to proceed with legal action in relation to the complaint.
When an application for assistance is received, our lawyers
conduct an assessment of the application before advising
the Commission on the strength of the evidence and other
considerations to be taken into account. Depending on the
legal advice received, we will decide whether or not to grant
assistance. This assistance can include legal advice to the
applicant by the EOC’s lawyers, legal services relating to
the consideration and assessment of further information or

®7. 200454 51H 200553831 HEREIRE CRARBRERAG) R BFEEHSEMERAENIERE (H323%)
Figure 7. Employment Related Allegations investigated under the DDO from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total Number: 323)
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Figure 8. Non-employment Related Allegations investigated under the DDO from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 148)
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the EOC'’s lawyers, or barristers in private practice briefed by
the EOC.

In 2004/05, we dealt with 53 applications for assistance,
granting assistance in 14 of them. Further details and
a breakdown of these applications can be found under
“Appendix 5: Applications for Legal Assistance”.

Legally Assisted Cases

In the year under review, 20 cases, in which legal assistance
had been granted (both before and during 2004/05), were
resolved without the commencement of legal proceedings.
Either the parties in question reached settlement or the EOC
withdrew assistance for various reasons. These reasons
range from instances where, upon further examination of
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Figure 9. Allegations investigated under the FSDO from 1 April
2004 to 31 March 2005 (Total number: 32)

8 (25%)

BT I ERE AR
Discrimination in the
non-employment related field

24 (75%)

BT RS AEIR
Discrimination in the
employment related field

the evidence, it was deemed inappropriate to continue
assistance, or when subsequent developments between the
parties made it unnecessary for assistance to continue.

In addition, we also dealt with nine other cases where legal
assistance had been granted either before or during 2004/05.
These cases are ongoing as no outcome had been reached
nor court proceedings commenced as at the end of March
2005. For further details, please refer to Appendix 6.

Court Cases

During the year, we also handled three court cases which had
commenced proceedings before 2004/05. These cases were
all still ongoing at the end of March 2005.

An appeal case was also still ongoing at the end of 2004/05.
The appeal court subsequently upheld the decision handed
down at the court of first instance, which found on behalf
of the Plaintiff, who was assisted by the EOC. However, the
appeal court reduced the compensation awarded.

During the year, we commenced legal proceedings in nine
cases. Four of these were settled on a confidential basis
and four were still ongoing at the end of the year 2004/05. In
the remaining case, judgment was received for the Plaintiff.
Please see Appendix 7 for details.

ZEE1E2004/05F EREUARTHNEE
Summary of the EOC’s Legal Activities in 2004/05

2004/055 E RRIER AR BB R E
Applications for legal assistance processed in 2004/05

2003/04F EWEIH BT
Received in 2003/04
2004/05F EW I R E
Received in 2004/05
Y
Total
BT AR
Granted
TET IR B
Not Granted
HEEERE
Withdrawn
ZEH

Under Consideration

17

36

53

14

30

BT rRmBaER
(BERRAERER)

Legally assisted cases
(without commencing legal proceedings)

EEER
Resolved

BRI
Ongoing

20

ZE S BRARER M (2004/05F E A 2 R BERER)
EOC assisted court cases (commenced before 2004/05)

RIEr
Ongoing

BZES2HPNLEHRR
Assisted cases under appeal

BRIEA
Ongoing

BEZEEHBIEERMG(TE2004/05F E RFIERR)
EOC assisted court cases (commenced in 2004/05)

2R
Settled
f5 3
Won
BRIE
Ongoing
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Our Role

Working to increase public awareness, fostering equal
opportunities values and improving understanding of the
anti-discrimination ordinances and related issues for the
community of Hong Kong remains the cornerstone of our
work. Our diverse public education programmes are wide
ranging, from early education and school programmes to
community outreach activities, media campaigns, training
programmes and publications.

Early Education

Focusing on the youth is a major EOC strategy as we seek to
inculcate acceptance of equal opportunity values from an early
age. Helping our young students to understand the negative
impact of discrimination and to develop a commitment
to an all-inclusive society, our schools programme is
based on a series of drama performances and youth
development projects.

Drama Performances

Drama helps to translate a concept into a situation which can
be better understood and more easily accepted by children.
We therefore join forces with local theatre troupes to stage
plays and puppet shows which focus on equal opportunities,
the three anti-discrimination ordinances and diversity.

During the year, an interactive play, 3-D Interactive Machine,
co-produced by the EOC and Jumbo Kids Theatre, introduced
the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance and related
scenarios to primary school students. Forty performances
were subsequently held in 34 primary schools for about
10,000 students in 2004/05.

The Jumbo Kids Theatre also received funding from the
Commission for performing Equal Opportunities Olympics, a
play which promoted the message “Inclusion and Equality for
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All”. A total of 30 performances were completed in 2004/05
for over 7,000 students.

Forest Union produced This is not a Joke, our most popular
play which focuses on the prevention of sexual harassment. A
total of 60 shows were performed for about 15,000 secondary
school students in 2004/05.

During the year, we also sponsored 178 performances of
The Kids on the Block, a puppet show presented by the
Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation and the Society for the
Relief of Disabled Children. The production, which is highly
entertaining and easily understood by children, has been a
big hit with over 150,000 primary school students who have
seen it since its inception in 1998.

EO Development Programme for Scouts and Girl Guides

This programme, jointly organized by the EOC, Scout
Association of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Girl Guides
Association, was held between August and November 2004.
A total of four training sessions, ranging from workshops,
lectures and visits to rehabilitation groups, were held for
scouts and girl guides to learn more about equal opportunity.
The participants then produced a drama performance for the
EO Expo 2004. This is our second co-operative effort with
the Scout Association of Hong Kong, which with the Hong
Kong Girl Guides, have a total of 100,000 members.

“Career Challenge 2004”

Building on past success, in 2004/05, we once again
organized our highly popular Career Challenge Youth
Mentorship Programme. The programme underlines the
importance of breaking down stereotypes, and has been
successfully completed by thousands of secondary school
students since 2002. In 2004/05, 500 students were able to
broaden their horizons, as they joined their mentors at work
or in large-group sharing sessions between January and
March 2005.
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Ten outstanding achievers from a wide spectrum of non-
traditional fields served as mentors for Career Challenge
2004. They included: Benny CHEUNG, Chairperson of the
Board of Directors, Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped
Youth; HO Ka-lai, Ex-member, the Hong Kong Fencing
Team; Simon KWOK, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, Sa Sa International Holdings Limited; Edward LAM,
Artistic Director, Edward Lam Dance Theatre; Alice LAU,
Commissioner of Inland Revenue; Dr Sarah LIAO, Secretary
for the Environment, Transport and Works; LIU Guozhu,
Chief Instructor (Food Preparation), Chinese Cuisine
Training Institute; Bonnie SMITH, Assistant Commissioner
of Police (Information System), Hong Kong Police Force;
James WONG, Headmaster, International School of Flower
Arrangement; and Betty YUEN, Managing Director, CLP Power
Hong Kong Limited.

For the many young participants, the programme provided a
rare opportunity for them to meet with successful individuals
who were able to overcome gender and disability barriers to
reach their goals.

“Have Your Say on Family Status” Youth Debate Competition
To enhance public awareness of the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance, the EOC and the Kowloon Women'’s
Organization Federation co-organized the “Have Your Say
on Family Status” Youth Debate Competition for secondary
schools. Applications were received from 67 schools, and
after three rounds of heated debate, which commenced in
April 2004, the PAOC Ka Chi Secondary School beat its rivals
to emerge as the winner in May 2004.

“A Mission for Equal Opportunities — Student Forum”

To produce a training module for the classroom situation,
we worked with Radio Television Hong Kong (RTHK) on an
educational package for teachers. The module features our
third TV docu-drama series A Mission for Equal Opportunities
and includes a user manual, FAQs and VCDs. A total of 2,000
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modules were distributed free of charge to schools and non-
profit organizations.

To launch the teaching kit, over 70 teachers participated in
a workshop held in January 2005. Student forums were also
organized to encourage students to express their views on
subjects and issues raised in the TV series.

Community Outreach

In promoting equal opportunities and the anti-discrimination
ordinances, the Commission remains committed to invest
in our outreach activities in the community. We continue to
strengthen links and work closely with our partners across
different sectors to educate members of the public about
current EO issues and discrimination problems.

The Community Participation Funding Programme

Making every effort to foster equal opportunity values in Hong
Kong, we have provided funding since 1997 to encourage non-
governmental organizations, community groups and schools
to initiate their own projects on equal opportunities. During
the year, the Community Participation Funding Programme
has attracted 111 applications, allocating HK$670,426 to 55
different projects. (See Appendix 8 for organizations funded
under this programme.)

Equal Opportunities Expo 2004

Equal Opportunities Expo, our major annual public
education initiative was held from October 2004 to February
2005. The event was jointly organized with Commercial
Radio, to promote the theme “Reaching out for Equal
Opportunities” through the launch of Career Challenge
2004, weekly radio programmes, roadshows, and a series of
community events.
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Duringthe Expo, fourroadshows were heldin Siu Sai Wan, Tuen
Mun, Kwai Fong and Ma On Shan in October and November
2004. The highlights of these roadshows were featured in a
weekly programme on Commercial Radio 1. Politicians and
celebrities including legislative councillor the Hon Audrey
EU Yuet-mee, popular singer and EO Ambassador HUI
Chi-on, mentors of Career Challenge 2004, representatives
from rehab and women’s groups, joined the programme to
promote the message of creating an inclusive environment
for the community. Many community organizations, including
Lok Kwan Social Service and HKSKH Ma On Shan (South)
Children & Youth Integrated Service Centre also worked with
us to show support for equal opportunity.

“EO Through Your Eyes” Photo Competition

We launched our first photo competition in November
2004, encouraging members of the public and aspiring
photographers to show the different and varying aspects of
inclusion and diversity in everyday life. The “EO Through Your
Eyes” Photo Competition, co-organized with Commercial
Radio, subsequently attracted some 600 entries in three
categories — Youth Division, Open Division and Professional
Division, with more than 40 submissions coming from
mainland China and overseas.

Raymond TANG, Chairperson of the EOC; KO Po-ling,
Convenor of the Public Education and Research Committee
of the EOC; May CHAN, Chairperson of the Hong Kong
News Executives’ Association and Director of News and
Public Affairs of Commercial Radio; Water POON, renowned
photographer; and Leo LAM, President of Hong Kong
Rehab Power were the adjudicators in the competition. The
winning entries were selected for their creativity, quality
and effectiveness in promoting gender equality, inclusion
of people with a disability as well as the portrayal of equal
opportunities for persons with family status.
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Media Campaigns

Engagement with the media is an essential element of
our communication strategy. It is recognized that the
dissemination of information on equal opportunity is crucial
in changing public attitudes and behaviour.

TV Docu-drama

The Commission commenced production of the fourth
TV docu-drama series, A Mission for Equal Opportunities
in February 2005. The TV series, which has been very
well received by the public in the past, was developed in
conjunction with RTHK. Based on real life discrimination
cases, the series sends a strong message that discrimination
is unlawful, and cannot be tolerated in our society.

Media Activities

A mark of progress in mainstreaming equal opportunity is
the increase in public awareness and expectations of the
Commission’s performance. Daily media enquiries touch on
many issues, including those not seemingly related to the three
anti-discrimination ordinances. The Commission is viewed to
be taking the lead to give due consideration to current issues.
In 2004/05, we held three news conferences, granted 21 media
interviews and issued 24 news releases. The Promotion and
Education Unit also handled 552 media enquiries, along with
some 425 enquiries from students, government departments,
private companies and community organizations.

To promote the TV docu-drama series A Mission for Equal
Opportunities, we also contributed 6 feature articles to the
Apple Daily which explained the legal perspectives of equal
opportunities issues conveyed in the TV programmes. A
poster advertisement campaign on the docu-drama series
was launched in April 2005 on Hong Kong’s mass transit
system. Posters conveying equal opportunity messages
were shown on over 200 light boxes at Mass Transit Railway,
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Kowloon-Canton Railway and Light Rail stations to millions
of passengers. Thousands of posters were distributed to
private and public housing estates, schools, universities,
libraries, hospitals and public enquiry service centres of the
Home Affairs Department to publicize the docu-drama series
and promote anti-discrimination concepts.

The EOC also contributed articles to Ming Pao, the Hong
Kong Teachers’ Centre Bulletin and PTU News (a publication
of the Hong Kong Professional Teachers’ Union) to illustrate
anti-discrimination principles and related issues.

On-line Resource Centre

The EOC website, our fully bi-lingual (Chinese/English) on-
line resource centre, is maintained to ensure that the most
up-to-date information on equal opportunities issues in
Hong Kong and around the world is available online. The
website provides a full and open view of all our activities,
and is proving to be increasingly popular with the public with
an average monthly hit rate of over 1,480,000 during the
2004/05 review year.

Strengthening the content of our current website and
keeping up with technological developments, we embarked
on a project to enhance our website in early 2005. A highlight
of the revamped website will be specifically targeted at the
employment sector, where employers and employees will
be able to access the latest information on how the equal
opportunity ordinances can work for them. The new website
will be launched in 2006.

Public Education Programmes

Talks
In 2004/05, we conducted 336 talks to interested groups
and received 22 groups at the Commission. Participants
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came from government departments, local and overseas
non-governmental organizations, tertiary institutions and
the business sector. Apart from the anti-discrimination
ordinances, the sessions covered a full spectrum of issues
on discrimination and equal opportunities.

Newsletters

EOC News, our quarterly bilingual newsletter, provides a
regular update of our programmes and activities as well as
case studies under the anti-discrimination ordinances. EOC
News, which boasts a circulation of over 80,000 copies, is
available free to members of the public. Braille and on-line
versions are also available.

New Resources

Resources focusing on different aspects of the anti-
discrimination legislation, as well as new developments in the
field, continue to raise awareness, and provide information
and assistance in eliminating discrimination.

New resources issued during the year include:

e “A Mission for Equal Opportunities — Student Forum”
Educational Module

e EOC Annual Report 2003/04

e Community Participation Funding Programme on Equal
Opportunities 2004/2005 (information booklet)
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e “Have Your Say on Family Status” Youth Debate
Competition (booklet)

e EOC News (Issue 29-32)

e “Know Your Rights Series — FSDO” leaflet (Revised
version)

e “Stand up for Equal Opportunity” leaflet (Revised
version)

Articles contributed by the EOC were included in the
following publications :

e legal Puzzle published by Career Times, provides
practical advice on employment issues

e FEliminating Discrimination in Employment: International
Standards and Implementation in China, published by the
China Programme of the Norwegian Centre for Human
Rights, University of Oslo.

In addition, the new E-learning Package for Teachers was
developed in partnership with the Education and Manpower
Bureau to help teachers learn about the DDO and how to
accommodate children with special educational needs.
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Building Networks

The EOC’s primary goal is to eliminate discrimination. To
fulfil this goal effectively, engagement with our community,
our stakeholders and the world at large, is crucial. Only
an ongoing and proactive dialogue allows us to keep our
finger on the pulse — enabling us to see, understand, initiate
and drive, the latest equal opportunity issues in a rapidly
changing world.

International Networking

It has been a year of considerable activity, we maintained
our exchanges with international human rights organizations,
updating ourselves and others on the many developments in
different parts of the world.

The Global ICT Summit 2004

In May 2004, we assisted in organizing the Global ICT Summit
2004, which took place in Hong Kong. With the theme
From Adversity to Success — The World’s Best e-Content &
e-Creativity Experience, the event was attended by some 400
information and communications technology (ICT) specialists
and professionals from over 24 countries. They shared not
only their knowledge on the concepts and trends that will
shape the future of ICT, but also their views on how to bridge
the growing digital divide, in situations where individuals,
organizations and sometimes even whole communities do
not have access to this life enhancing technology. We spoke
about the enrichment that ICT can provide to life and the
importance of ensuring that this technology and information
is accessible to everyone.
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The Global Summit of Women 2004

In the same month, the EOC participated in the Global
Summit of Women 2004, which took place in Seoul, Korea.
About 900 women from 83 countries, including women
ministers, public officials, entrepreneurs and NGO
representatives attended the event, celebrating women’s
leadership globally and discussing how best to ensure
gender equality, promote women'’s leadership and accelerate
the economic development of women. The Summit’s theme
Leadership, Technology and Growth, focused on the use of
technology to grow business, access diverse markets and
expand networks.

During the event, the EOC participated in the Pre-Summit
Ministerial Roundtable on Economic Development. Attended
by 51 women ministers and deputy ministers, the Roundtable
explored best practices in accessing technology for women
as well as public and private sector partnerships in advancing
women’s economic growth.

Asia Pacific Forum of National Human Rights Institutions

The EOC also attended the 9th Annual Meeting of the Asia
Pacific Forum of National Human Rights Institutions, which
was held in Seoul, Korea in September 2004. A diverse group
from around the world were able to participate, including
the Commissioner General of the Palestine Independent
Commission for Human Rights, the Executive Director of the
Australian Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission
and the Chief Commissioner of the New Zealand Human
Rights Commission, as well as ministers from Irag and
Guatemala to discuss human rights developments in their
respective countries. The delegates also paid a visit to the
National Human Rights Commission in Korea.

ZEERKRIIE2004/05F F HFE Nt B/EKRESZ
Major Regional and International Conferences attended by the EOC in 2004/05

The 34th Session of the Committee on Economic, Social and
Cultural Rights (ICESCR)

In the process of maintaining regular contact with the treaty
monitoring bodies of the United Nations, the EOC attended
the 34th Session of the Committee on Economic, Social and
Cultural Rights in Geneva in April 2005, after submitting our
Report to the UN Committee in February 2005 on Hong
Kong’s Second Report on ICESCR.

Before the Geneva hearing, we welcomed two prominent
visitors from the UN Committee on Economic, Social
and Cultural Rights, Professor Virginia Bonoan-Dandan,
Chairperson; and Maria Virginia Bras Gomes, member of the
Committee from Portugal to the EOC.

HEHA Date JHE) Event ith 2k Location
2004F5A 2004 FEIFR R BRI 1B S HEEE
May 2004 Global ICT Summit 2004 Hong Kong, China
2004558 2004 F 2 HIF L HIEEH FEEW
May 2004 Global Summit of Women 2004 Seoul, Korea
2004584 [REAR TAES

(BRERRE KPR AREH 0P BT T B2 ) HEdE R
August 2004 Workshop on Non-discrimination

(organized by China Programme of the Norwegian Centre

for Human Rights, University of Oslo) Beijing, China
2004%8A FETREAXRBERAR R EREREE HEE B
August 2004 The 7th International Conference of

Human Services Information Technology Applications Hong Kong, China
2004594 BIRABHBT AmEENEFS FMEEA
September 2004 9th Annual Meeting of the Asia Pacific Forum

of National Human Rights Institutions Seoul, Korea
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Major Regional and International Conferences attended by the EOC in 2004/05

2004/05F BRI ZEENEIAR T RS HES
EOC Visitors from Mainland China and around the World in 2004/05

28 D g . H A Date =& Visitors
Hf Date J vent # Location . p— T . o
— - p— — ~ 200456 A PERBEBREELEREIRRRABENEPOETEFHEHER
20045107 (GEzERENRERR A TRANEROER24) June 2004 Prof. Zhou Wei, Deputy Dean of Law School of Shanghai Jiao Tong University
EEZESWEREF=SRENEEZIIFH and Director of Human Rights Law Study Centre
(HBEE DA E R BB AL RKREEH) REEAR 2004478 WIREHRR  EAABEERRAREHENERERFNEE/BE
October 2004 Workshop on Regional Follow-up to the Third (ISNAEEE R RH — 3REH)
. . =
anél Fourt?] Ses_smns(;)]l‘ T © A? IHtOC C?_mmllt’ge on i July 2004 Teaching staff/students from Zhejiang University Law School,
a omprenensive anq ntegral international --onvention Yantai University Law Faculty and Law Institute of Inner Mongolia Academy
on the Protection and Promotion of the Rights of Social Sciences
and D|gn|ty of Pe_rsons W.'th Dlsab'“t'e.s (organized by Asian Human Rights Commission -3 visits)
(organized by United Nations Economic and — - N .
Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific / 2004F10A8 BEEKE  HEEENEZEEEEIERKRE
Asia Pacific Disability Forum) Bangkok, Thailand (Virginia Bonoan-DandanZ{#% & Maria Virginia Bras Gomes)
se A aaR BT Oetober 2008 Charpeson sn e of e Unt Natops Camrtics on Econom
NS Ay | ES 5=, O E0RS -
@Sﬁ:&%ﬁ%ﬁ; f + H@%ﬁﬁ? EQE%;)'%%‘FE% R E N Maria Virginia Bras Gomes)
FIREASNEMHE = Y N N e -
November 2004 Seminar on Rehabilitation Services for Persons 20045117 Ui&ﬁﬁjﬁ{al&%}\%m%ﬁfféﬁg&ﬁ (Lubna A. AI—AnsawT@i)
with Intellectual Disability November 2004 Memper of.Executlve Council, National Society of Human Rights,
(organized by Guangdong Disabled Persons’ Federation, Saudi Arabia (Dr. Lubna A. Al-Ansary)
Caritas Hong Kong, Parents Association for Persons 2004F 118 BN AP L R ERSE R RS OMERD (SN E R ER PO HE)
with Intellectual Disability, Taiwan, and the Macau November 2004 Lawyers from the Legal Clinic of the Sun Yat-sen University in Guangzhou
Association for the Mentally Handicapped) Guangzhou, China (organized by Asian Legal Resource Centre)
20054 A8 BEEKHE HEHELENEZESEUEER mHrtARE 2004128 I REBEER: - AKEREEERN: - TBARBEEREE
April 2005 The 34th Session of the Committee on Economic, (REERBESTESEY)
Social and Cultural Rights (ICESCR) Geneva, Switzerland December 2004 Teaching staff from Law Schools of Shanxi University, Inner Mongolia University
and Xinjiang University
(organized by the Legal Education Trust Fund)
20055148 I EF R DERRIIEERER
(B BRI =)
January 2005 Officials from the Justice Department of Zhejiang, Justice Bureaux of

Chonggqing, Nanjing, Shanghai and Shenzhen
(organized by the Department of Justice, Hong Kong)
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Local Links

In the past years, we have worked closely with new
stakeholders and NGO'’s, which provide an important voice
from civil society to enhance our activities. On the other hand,
our partnerships with these local groups have shown the
growing importance of EO as perceived by the community,
and is one measure of how equal opportunity affects our
daily lives.

The EOC attended the regular meetings of the Advisory
Committee on AIDS of the Hong Kong Federation of Women’s
Centres. The Committee discussed various issues, including
conducting a Baseline Study on Needs and Risks of Women
Attending Sexually-transmitted llinesses Clinics in Hong
Kong, progress of projects funded by AIDS Trust Fund and
training courses for the public.

We actively supported the Hong Kong Internet Professionals
Association’s Web Care Award 2004. EOC initiatives in this
direction include working closely with IT professionals to
empower disadvantaged communities, as well as funding
for initiatives which promote IT accessibility. These activities
promote greater awareness of equal opportunities within
the community, building links and ongoing partnerships with
our stakeholders.

We also participated in the Mental Health Month 2004, with
its month-long series of activities organized by the Health,
Welfare and Food Bureau, various government departments
and NGOs to spearhead the mental well-being of children.
The launch of the Caring School programme was aimed at
enhancing the mental health awareness of students, their
family and teachers, and encouraging early detection of
mental illnesses by parents and educators.
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The EOC delivered 5 half-day seminars to about 200 principals
and administrators of Catholic primary and seconday schools
in Hong Kong on Equal Opportunity and Human Resources
Issues in Education Setting. One 2-hour workshop was
conducted, introducing the work of the Commission and
giving an overview of the three Ordinances to around 20
bishops and prominent liturgical workers of the Catholic
Church. The initiative formed a major part of the Hong
Kong Catholic Commission for Labour Affairs’ campaign on
promoting “Decent Work” launched in 2004/2005.

In our work to promote equal opportunity to union works,
this year we provided public education courses on EO laws
for women workers, jointly organized by the Legal Education
Trust Fund and the Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions.

To strengthen our capacity to deliver quality service, staff
of the EOC paid a visit to Towngas, to learn about change
management strategies and customer service practices in
the private sector.
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Local Conferences / Events Organized, Supported or Attended by the EOC in 2004/2005

HHA Date SHE) Event

T 48 Organized by

2004558 [AIEE — BBNESR | izt

BBBEME

May 2004 Conference on “Lessons to Learn : Hong Kong Policy Research Institute
Governing Hong Kong”
200454 [BRETIRE] HE BELEREHE
May 2004 Seminar on “Promoting A Family The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
Friendly Workplace”
200456 A BRSNS BOMREEALHE BEEES
e - BERRRFEHE  BEERESE
June 2004 Seminar on Direction Association for the Handicapped,
“Barrier Free Tourism” Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped
Youth, Retina Hong Kong, Rehab Alliance
200474 (B - BREE =PI 2 M R ER A
=HEE] HEE
July 2004 Seminar : “Tri-partite partnership among Central Policy Unit
Government, Business and the Third Sector”
20045 7H FEtEBeRREACEXHE ERREZBUEREERS
July 2004 Graduation Ceremony of Hong Kong Family Link
Mental Health Ambassadors Mental Health Advocacy Association
200458A P LM ERE — KBWmiE ZEERGUEKESS
August 2004 Forum on “Preventing Sexual EOC and the Women’s Commission
Harassment in Universities”
200484 MR SEREEE D MNwE MRS
August 2004 Worldwide Richmond Fellowship Conference  Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong
& Asia Pacific Forum 2004
200448 A [ERERTENRERRA TR BELSREHE
EERMNER AN 2 FEEREE | e
August 2004 Seminar on “Critical Issues affecting Hong Kong Council of Social Service
the Drafting of an International Convention
on Protection and Promotion of the Rights
and Dignity of Persons with Disabilities”
200458A [ZESHHHRE] T8 EERERES
August 2004 Luncheon on Challenges faced by the EOC Hong Kong Democratic Foundation

H 8 Date SEE) Event F P4 Organized by
20045948 [BEBANITEEETLE] g AN
September 2004  Seminar on “Work-life Balance in Hong Kong” Community Business
2004594 DEMIED A LB RHEHR
September 2004  Sexual Minorities Forum Home Affairs Bureau
20045948 DEHEBALRE RBE%R
September 2004  Ethnic Minorities Forum Home Affairs Bureau
20045108 2004 F B RERA 20045 BHERASES
October 2004 Mental Health Month 2004 Organizing Committee of
Mental Health Month 2004
20045108 22004 BEEmE
October 2004 Law Week 2004 The Law Society of Hong Kong
20045118 [RESRNELBHREPHRER | B Mz X
November 2004  Forum on “Domestic Violence Harmony House
in the Ethnic Minority Communities”
20045118 [EfEEER | e EBnE
November 2004  “Transport for All” Seminar Transport Department
20045118 F/ B TS E H EREZRER
November 2004  World SME Expo Hong Kong Trade Development Council
20045128 HRIEH TR FBFESLRRIRE METHES
December 2004  Seminar on Gender Mainstreaming in NGOs  Association for the Advancement
of Feminism
2005 1A [FEHE - HEGEEZERIER AL ] EBARE
e
January 2005 “Equal Opportunities, Disparate Impact University of Hong Kong
& the Laws against Racial Discrimination”
Seminar
2005%2H-5H ARRRITHAEMRSE [HMBERBEFH EBRIBETIEREES
FEREEADEREE | S REHR
TEWBASMRNIES
February Five Seminars for principals, and Hong Kong Catholic Commission
- May 2005 administrators on “Equal Opportunity for Labour Affairs

and Human Resources Issues in Education
Setting”and Workshop for bishops
and liturgical workers
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2005534 [EEENEZEEENER] HE PIEEPAES

March 2005 Seminar on “The Image of Women Harmony House
in the Mass Media”

20053 A =BE EBNE KSR

March 2005 Confluence Dinner The Hong Kong University of Science

& Technology

200553 A [ EREHEEFRNRELE] e EELEESRTRAARRGS

March 2005 Seminar on “How to run a responsible Business Environment Council, HSBC
business for service industries”

2005%3 A [EREOELRE | ZSunf@EEE) NEFLHE

March 2005 “Same Roots, One Heart” Integration Event Kowloon Women'’s

Organizations Federation
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General Activities

Our efforts to maintain liaison with our counterparts around
the world provides us with benchmarks against which
we can measure our own expertise and development. In
November 2005, we welcomed Ms Tracey Raymond and Mr.
Domenic Vircillo, both seasoned trainers from the Australian
Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission,
who provided advanced courses for EOC staff on
investigation and conciliation, as well as exchanging views
on dispute resolution.

In 2004/05, we welcomed a growing number of visitors
from mainland China and around the world, including
Dr.LubnaA. Al-Ansary, Member of Executive Council of Saudi
Arabia National Society of Human Rights. Our visitors from
across the border have shown keen interest in our work of
implementing anti-discrimination legislation in Hong Kong,
in their efforts to assist the disadvantaged groups in their
own communities.
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Survey of Family-friendly Employment
Policies and Practices in Hong Kong

Researchers have long recognized that work and family are
not separate spheres, but are interdependent domains with
permeable boundaries. In the past few years, there have
been growing concerns over the lack of work-life balance
among the working population and calls for a more family
friendly environment have increased both around the world
and in Hong Kong.

A number of organizations, aware of the importance of a
healthy work-life balance, have now introduced Family-
friendly Policies, or FFPs, which have been designed to
help employees to balance work and family roles. As many
working women consider family responsibilities to be one
of the barriers to their further career advancement, FFPs
therefore, are particularly important to women with children
because they allow women to balance their personal caring
and work duties. According to the experience of employers
in a number of countries overseas, FFPs enable employees
to work productively while also meeting their family
responsibilities. To ensure equal opportunity treatment in
employment for individuals with family responsibilities and to
plan for the future, it is important to understand how FFPs will
work, and whether they are a practical option for Hong Kong.
Just as importantly it is crucial to find out how employers and
employees in Hong Kong will perceive these programmes.

The EOC is therefore planning to conduct a survey to gain a
better understanding on the needs, awareness, prevalence
and benefits of FFPs in Hong Kong.
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Social expectations have changed in recent years -
knowledgeable consumers are increasingly demanding
businesses to operate in a fair and open manner, providing
equal employment opportunities as well as fair and equitable
management practices. In delivering a better service
to stakeholders, government institutions, public bodies
and businesses have been keen to raise awareness of
discrimination and best practice within their organizations,
while also seeking the skills and procedures to deal with
such problems, should they arise. It was another busy year
for our Training and Consultancy Unit.

In 2003/04, our training and development programmes
broadened into government and education with special
learning packages for teachers as well as the general
community. This trend not only continued but strengthened
in 2004/05. We have received positive feedback from our
trainees — who acknowledged the benefits of our “tailored”
programmes, and increasing demand for our services shows
that we are able to achieve progress in generating awareness
and understanding of equal opportunity concepts in the
workplace. Since the establishment of our training unit in
2001, we have completed over 600 talks, presentations and
workshops for more than 35,000 business, human resource,
legal and other professionals.

Ongoing Activities

Equal Opportunity Workshops for the Private Sector

In meeting needs identified in the employment sector for
training and information on Hong Kong'’s anti-discrimination
legislation, we completed two calendar programmes,
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consisting of 36 sessions for 637 participants, during the
financial year. Aimed particularly at Hong Kong’s human
resource professionals, equal opportunity practitioners and
managers, many medium and small business are now better
equipped to comply with the SDO, DDO and FSDO.

Broadening the scope of these programmes, we introduced
a new course during the year. Issues in Human Resources
Management explores various staff management issues,
dealing with the subject of sick leave under the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance and effective strategies to tackle it.

Our tailor made training programmes continue to increase
in popularity as they not only meet the equal opportunity
needs of individual organizations, but also help those
particular organizations develop their own EO policies and
procedures. In view of the many positive comments received
from clients, our work in this area more than doubled during
the year. In 2004/05, we completed 239 training sessions for
15,472 people, representing a growth of 109% and 151%
respectively, as compared to the previous year.

We also continue to provide training for specific professional
groups across Hong Kong. Inline with our activities in 2003/04
as well as our ongoing focus on the insurance industry, much
of our work in this area during the year centred primarily
on insurance intermediaries during the year. In 2004/05,
we delivered Continuing Professional Development (CPD)
courses to over 1,750 insurance intermediaries.
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In view of the success of our development programmes
organized in conjunction with the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service for NGOs last year, we joined hands once
again with the Council to deliver training programmes for the
management and staff of NGOs. These workshops, which
were attended by a total of 86 NGO representatives, took
place throughout October and November 2004.

With widespread access to the Internet, we are placing an
increasing focus on interactive and web-based teaching
and learning. The advantages of e-learning programmes are
multifold — learning is interactive, yet teachers can proceed
at their own pace, place and time. The cost of delivery is also
low compared to traditional classroom teaching methods. In
June 2004, we launched our E-learning Package for Teachers
on Equal Opportunities in Education in partnership with the
Education and Manpower Branch. The package provides a
self paced web-based training programme for primary and
secondary school teachers in relation to the DDO. Teachers
who successfully complete the three modules also receive
a credit of four hours towards their Continuing Professional
Development.

Working with the Civil Service Training and Development
Institute, a self-learning kit for civil servants on Valuing
Diversity is being developed. Reflecting developments in the
general community in Hong Kong, the packages within the
kit are being designed to include equal opportunity values,
gender mainstreaming issues and respect for diversity.
Produced in conjunction with the Home Affairs Bureau and
the Women’s Commission, the training kit will be completed
in 2005.
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In 2004/05, about 200 migrant workers attended a number
of seminars held in conjunction with the Caritas Community
Development Service on sexual harassment. In view of
the success of seminars held the year before, three further
seminars on the subject were organized for Hong Kong’s
Indonesian, Thai and Filipino workers in November and
December 2004.

Following the lead of the Indonesian Consulate last year,
representatives from the Royal Thai Consulate and Philippine
Consulate in Hong Kong were also present at the seminars
for Thai and Filipino workers, to explain their services and
the consulate support available to workers. As participants
are generally unfamiliar with the issues and as many of them
are unaware of their rights under the equal opportunity laws
in Hong Kong, they found the information provided to be very
useful. Around 200 participants attended the seminars.

In view of the Forum on Preventing Sexual Harassment
in Universities held in August 2004, a number of
recommendations were made by participants, including a
call for collaboration with the EOC to carry out more publicity
and education initiatives against sexual harassment.

As a result, we held seven workshops and seminars on
Sexual Harassment Awareness Training for Student Leaders
at the request of four universities (Chinese University of
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Hong Kong, City University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Lingnan University), which more
than 330 student leaders attended from June to August
2005. Participants’ feedback was very positive, and students
felt the contents used were relevant to the issues they were
concerned about.
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Equal Opportunities Commission
Statement of Accounts for the Year Ended 31st March 2005

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE COMMISSION MEMBERS OF
THE EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION

(established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Sex Discrimination Ordinance)

We have audited the accounts on pages 62 to 85 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of Commission and auditors

The Commission is responsible for the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which
give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made
by the Commission in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Commission, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are
free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Commission as at 31st March 2005 and
of its results and cash flows for the year then ended.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7th November 2005
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2005
ok

71,926,715
126,000
344,496
984,777

73,381,988

35,825,977
14,272,116

(161,411)

674,254
2,771,155

(51,285)

3,488
5,316,163
343,852
346,411
2,207,083

61,547,803

11,834,185

(8,865,874)
(2,968,311)

2004
ok

78,074,380

233,758
560,917

78,869,055

40,450,045
14,843,427
223,108
820,893
3,087,955
(218,414)
346,055
5,447 527
3,238,886
(2,370,000)
254,522
2,596,879

69,620,883

9,248,172

1,324,190

(10,572,362)

Statement of Income and Expenditure
for the Year Ended 31st March 2005

Note

INCOME AND REVENUE

Government subventions

Reimbursement of costs from legal litigation
Interest income

Sundry income

EXPENDITURE

Staff salaries
Staff gratuity, other benefits and allowances
(Decrease)/increase in provision for unutilised annual leave
Legal fees
Publicity and public education expenses
Publicity and public education expenses financed by
capital subvention fund 8
Research projects and training modules
Rent and rates
Furniture and equipment depreciation
Furniture and equipment financed by capital subvention fund 8
Overseas visits, conferences and staff training
Other operating expenses

Surplus for the Year 3
Transfer from general reserve 7
Transfer to reserve 7
Transfer to subvention surplus account payable to Government 11

Surplus carried forward

2005
HK$

71,926,715
126,000
344,496
984,777

73,381,988

35,825,977
14,272,116
(161,411)
674,254
2,771,155

(561,285)
3,488
5,316,163
343,852

346,411
2,207,083

61,547,803

11,834,185

(8,865,874)
(2,968,311)

2004
HKS

78,074,380

233,758
560,917

78,869,055

40,450,045
14,843,427
223,108
820,893
3,987,955

(218,414)
346,065
5,447,527
3,238,886
(2,370,000)
254,522
2,596,879

69,620,883

9,248,172
1,324,190

(10,572,362)
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2005
B

6
3,398,284

3,398,290

1,723,173
665,139
46,209,439

48,597,751

2,279,616
11,195,500
1,723,173
2,080,835
13,540,673

30,819,797

21,176,244

18,750,000

18,750,000

163,669
2,036,615
225,960

21,176,244

2004
B

6
5,601,359

5,601,365

1,884,584
633,882
27,736,800

30,255,266

3,875,389
1,240,196
1,884,584
745,035
10,572,362

18,317,566

17,639,065

9,884,126

9,884,126

166,080
7,211,614
277,245

17,539,065

RN E

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
as at 31st March 2005

Note 2005 2004
HK$ HKS$
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets 4 6 6
Gratuity subvention receivable from Government 5 3,398,284 5,601,359
3,398,290 5,601,365
CURRENT ASSETS
Unutilised annual leave subvention receivable from Government 1,723,173 1,884,584
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 665,139 633,882
Bank balances and cash 46,209,439 27,736,800
48,597,751 30,255,266
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable, provisions and accruals 6 2,279,616 3,875,389
Provision for staff gratuity 9(b) 11,195,500 1,240,196
Provision for unutilised annual leave 1,723,173 1,884,584
Government subvention received in advance 10 2,080,835 745,035
Subvention surplus account payable to Government 11 13,540,673 10,572,362
30,819,797 18,317,566
NET CURRENT ASSETS 17,777,954 11,937,700
21,176,244 17,539,065
Represented by:
RESERVES 7 18,750,000 9,884,126
SURPLUS AND DEFICIT ACCOUNT - -
18,750,000 9,884,126
Provision for long service and severance payment 9(a) 163,669 166,080
Provision for staff gratuity 9(b) 2,036,615 7,211,614
Capital subvention fund 8 225,960 277,245
21,176,244 17,539,065
Mr. Raymond TANG Yee-bong Ms. Virginia CHOI Wai-kam Miss Kerrie TENG
Chairperson of the Commission Convenor of the Administration Accountant
and Finance Committee
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9,248,172
1,324,190

(10,572,362)

11,834,185
(8,865,874)

(2,968,311)
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11,208,316 2,865,659
- (2,865,659)
(1,324,190) -
9,884,126 -
8,865,874 -
18,750,000 -

HBE
it

14,073,975

(2,865,659)

9,248,172

(10,572,362)

9,884,126

11,834,185

(2,968,311)

18,750,000

Statement of Changes in Funds

for the Year Ended 31st March 2005

At 1st April 2003
Reclassified

Surplus for the year

Transfer from general reserve

Transfer to subvention surplus
account payable to Government

At 31st March 2004
Surplus for the year

Transfer from statement of income
and expenditure

Transfer to subvention surplus
account payable to Government

At 31st March 2005

Statement of

income and
expenditure
HK$

9,248,172

1,324,190

(10,572,362)

11,834,185

(8,865,874)

(2,968,311)

Reserves
HK$
(Note 7)

11,208,316

(1,324,190)

9,884,126

8,865,874

18,750,000

Capital
subvention
fund Total
HK$ HK$
(Note 8)
2,865,659 14,073,975
(2,865,659) (2,865,659)
- 9,248,172
- (10,572,362)
- 9,884,126
- 11,834,185
- (2,968,311)
- 18,750,000

6/
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13(a)

13(b)

2005 2004

B ot
18,471,995 7,651,241
344,496 233,758
(343,852)  (1,066,444)
644 (832,686)
18,472,639 6,818,555
18,472,639 6,818,555
27,736,800 20,918,245
46,209,439 27,736,800
46,209,439 27,736,800

Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31st March 2005

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received
Purchase of fixed assets

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Net cash inflow before financing

Financing activities

Government capital subvention

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Bank balances and cash

Note

13(a)

13(0)

2005 2004
HK$ HKS
18,471,995 7,651,241
344,496 233,758
(343,852) (1,066,444)
644 (832,686)
18,472,639 6,818,555
18,472,639 6,818,555
27,736,800 20,918,245
46,209,439 27,736,800
46,209,439 27,736,800
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Legal status

The Equal Opportunities Commission (the “Commission”) is a statutory body set up in 1996 to implement the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance and the Family Status Discrimination Ordinance.
The Commission works towards the elimination of discrimination on the grounds of sex, marital status, pregnancy,
disability and family status. The Commission also aims to eliminate sexual harassment and harassment and
vilification on the grounds of disability and promote equality of opportunities between men and women, between
persons with and without a disability and irrespective of family status.

The Commission is a government subvented body exempted from payment of all taxes administered by the Inland
Revenue Department by virtue of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112).

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

The HKICPA has recently issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“new HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1st January 2005. The Commission has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the accounts for
the year ended 31st March 2005. The Commission has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

(b) Revenue recognition
()  Income from government subvention is recognised on an accruals basis.

Government subventions relating to specific projects are included in the capital subvention fund and
are deferred and recognised as income in the statement of income and expenditure over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government subventions relating to the purchase of fixed assets are included in the capital subvention fund
and are credited to the statement of income and expenditure as income to match with the depreciation
charge of the related assets.

(i)  Reimbursement of costs from legal litigation is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

(iv) Sundry income is recognised on an accruals basis.

(c) Fixed assets
The Commission, as a non-profit making organization, is exempt from compliance with Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) No. 17 “Property, plant and equipment” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amounts written off.

Each category of fixed assets is stated at a nominal value of HK$1. The cost of all additions is written off in
the year of acquisition to the statement of income and expenditure.
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WA TLER - BEEGENSEIEENRE  SRESXEEN  BESERAS IEARE - WLUEH
EEHSEAR -

EEEF

() EEBBEZERE
BEERZENFRERIBRERANELIGER -AESCREREMEENTRERRIBERBELEE
AR %R -

BEERZHANRR - DBREREERNBERE A HER o

(i) BASEME
ZESCABTBHY —EARFMAESITE( [FE] ) ZetBZ2EEIRERNEEATEZEERN - &
EENEEEF I ERESENERAASNS%HEN  UBABA1TTAR - ZES O EWEL MR - B
EERSIERH -

3. MIBFERLR

2005 2004
ok g

FABBRC G TIIER

B 7E & 2 i3

- REBRABFERE - 197,558

- B R A EMBTREE 343,852 868,886

BEMEY - THNIETF 5,316,163 5,447,527

=BT S 27,320 25,560

Notes to the Accounts

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the leasing company are charged to the statement of income and expenditure on a straight-line basis
over the lease period.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences are dealt with in the statement of income
and expenditure.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Commission has a present legal or constructive obligation where as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Commission expects a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, to the extent of the amount of the related provision, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Employee benefits

() Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

(i) Pension obligations
The Commission has established a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered funds. Both the Commission
and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per month. The Commission’s contributions to the MPF scheme
are expensed as incurred.

Surplus for the year

2005 2004
HK$ HK$
Surplus for the year is stated after charging the following:
Fixed assets written off
- financed by government capital subventions - 197,558
- financed by other government subventions 343,852 868,886
Operating leases - land and buildings 5,316,163 5,447,527
Auditors’ remuneration 27,320 25,560
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BEREBAFITRRBAHEHETZRESRBOMNE T ENES

This represents funds to be reimbursed by the Government in respect of gratuity payments to staff of the

Commission.

4. BEIEEE 4. Fixed assets

e NEN BNRF{EE Simultaneous

MHE REEEz N N Office interpretation

330 Ko g fE R A AE BISEM BEES KBy Fixtures  furniture and public

K kil ki kil priiei il s Leasehold and and Motor Computer address
R improvements fittings equipment  vehicles equipment equipment Total
Z@zoo:@m 10 645640 5543309 3127548 726698 3900760 394724 14338778 Cost HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

NI E - 8,009 200,208 - 135,635 - 343,852 ,

Sl , ' ’ ’ At 1st April 2004 645,649 5,543,399 3,127,548 726,698 3,000,760 394,724 14,338,778
FPRURD/HEH - (11334) (114,196) (227,540) Additions - 8009 200,208 - 185,635 - 343,852
. Disposals/written off - - (113,344) - (114,196) (227,540)
M2005F3HA31H 645,649 5551408 3,214,412 726,698 3,922,199 394,724 14,455,090

At 31st March 2005 645,649 5,551,408 3,214,412 726,698 3,922,199 394,724 14,455,090
Mgy > Rt 2
20044 818 645648 5543398 3127547 726697 3900750 394723  14,338772 Accumulated amounts
paAEL Sl ] 8009 200208 199639 ] 343802 At ?;?Zt:rﬁ 2°ofg>4 645,648 5,543,398 3,127,547 726,697 3,000,759 394,723 14,338,772

NNy ”" _ y y y y y y y y s s s
FPRLD I (113:344) (114,1%) (227,540) Written off for the year - 8,009 200,208 - 135,635 - 343,852
\ Disposals/written off - - (113,344) - (114,196) (227,540)
200553 831H 645648 5551407 3214411 726697 3922198 394723 14455084

At 31st March 2005 645,648 5,551,407 3,214,411 726,697 3,022,198 394,723 14,455,084
RERE .
200543 A31H 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 Net book value
200443 A3 B 1 1 1 1 1 1 : At 31st March 2005 1 1 1 1 1 1 6
At 31st March 2004 1 1 1 1 1 1 6
5. EWBFHLmiNE®EED ) ; )
2005 004 5. Gratuity subvention receivable from Government
e e 2005 2004
A HKS HKS
%&%%@Héﬁﬁ ?'288'322 g’ggg’gﬁg At 1st April 5,601,359 5,959,344
Eﬂﬁﬁklﬁ“ﬁﬁi\ﬁ/ﬁ@iﬁl/\ 2 B 9'404’000 7’,] 84,000 Provision made for staff gratuity 7,200,925 6,826,015
I R BN S (9,404,000 (7,184,000) Gratuity subvention received from Government (9.404.000) (7,184,000)
F3A31H 3,398,284 5,601,359 At 31st March 3,398,284 5,601,359
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6. ENIRE - BEERESEN

JERTIRIE - BERETERAC BIEATEENES):
EEEREE
2005 2004
ki ok
R4R81H 1,430,700 2,825,478
B AE 674,254 820,893
MBRFEEXNZz2% (872,573) (2,215,671)
M3A31H 1,232,381 1,430,700
FREBRANEBRERNERZ B GRLHAER BRI AVARFAMMY RAARF MR - EEMRN
R R SRS EUAREREEFARER o
7. e
- S |
RIERE  ATAARE AR 1 EE
ok eotia ko ok ko
72003493 A31H K&2003%F4 A1H 886,266 2,544,045 7,778,005 - 11,208,316
BAMWE EE R - - (1,324,190) - (1,324,190)
886,266 2,544,045 6,453,815 - 0,884,126
200443 H31H (886,266) (2,544,045) (6,453,815) 9,884,126 -
FREREZE  ERFAL —REBEEEHE
RIS EEREA - - - 8865874 8,865,874
200543 H31H - - - 18,750,000 18,750,000

BUFERIAE LA R B @i E R A —E S RN BMRBASBREENIE - RAMRFE - 2k

AR ESMERREBNE  WARESEFEEMEEN25%A LR - Fit - Z89

= oA

E R REHEIR

 WREARRIEREE  OEEFLFEE N —REENSRBEEEEFNHER - ESEFTOEEIE—R

Mg ZESARATERLRAMNEE -

EREFE  EXNRBHEAEERARNE  BRAZEFH - BAETRLTEER
AR ERG TRIBREAR GHIRLEFRNWA T EREDHAZES

REPEREBZA - —REFEEHEZHUBERBA  UME—RAE -

HA BN 2 °
R R AR

Notes to the Accounts

6.

Accounts payable, provisions and accruals

Movement of provisions included in accounts payable, provisions and accruals is as follows:

Provision for legal fees

2005 2004
HK$ HK$
At 1st April 1,430,700 2,825,478
Provisions made 674,254 820,893
Amount paid during the year (872,573) (2,215,671)
At 31st March 1,232,381 1,430,700

Provision for legal fees is set up for legal expenses to be incurred in respect of litigation raised by or against the
Commission. The timing and amount to be utilised will depend on the progress of the respective litigation.

Reserves
Legal
Capital litigation General
reserve reserve reserve Reserve Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
At 31st March 2003 and at 1st April 2003 886,266 2,544,045 7,778,005 - 11,208,316
Transfer to the statement of income - - (1,324,190) - (1,324,190)
and expenditure
886,266 2,544,045 6,453,815 - 9,884,126
At 31st March 2004 (886,266) (2,544,045) (6,453,815) 9,884,126 -
Transfer from capital, legal litigation
and general reserves to reserve
Transfer from statement of income - - - 8,865,874 8,865,874
and expenditure
At 31st March 2005 - - - 18,750,000 18,750,000

During the year, instead of approving the transfer of certain amount of the surplus from statement of income and
expenditure to various reserves, the Government has allowed the Commission to maintain reserve balance which
is capped at 25% of the Commission’s annual recurrent subvention. Accordingly, the Commission has set up a
new reserve account and transferred the balances of capital reserve, legal litigation reserve and general reserve to
this new reserve account. This new reserve is available for general use and can be spent at the discretion of the
Commission within the reserve ceiling.

In previous years, the capital reserve was available for use in computer system enhancement, office refurbishment,
improvement of office security and other capital expenditure. The legal litigation reserve was utilized for legal fees
in respect of legal assistance granted to any person who institutes proceedings under the anti-discrimination
ordinances or any litigation raised against the Commission. The general reserve was transferred from the statement
of income and expenditure and was available for general use.

7
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8. BXAMBESE

8. Capital subvention fund

/8

Research and

y=RNE P &N [F{ERIEM Sect Sett ed“,oattio”a'
| o i oo ector etting up projects on
%{/EE@ ’?*5% E? R targeted costs for equal pay for
B EFRY VAN HAEE L training additional work of
S okt et ot materials office equal value Total
MN2003E3 /8318 & HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2003F4H1H 440,000 2,370,000 55,659 2,865,659 At 31st March 2003 and
------------------------------ 1st April 2003 440,000 2,370,000 55,659 2,865,659
BRI AEERIEWA LRS!
- B AT E AN B Transfer to the statement of income and
HRE = = } } expenditure as income to match with:
EJJ Eﬂéié TEHE' (197,558) (197,558) - Depreciation of fixed assets financed by
- RIS R R E B A - (2,172,442) - (2,172,442) government capital subventions - (197,558) - (197,558)
-EERARHEXN (218,414) - - (218,414) - Other charges for furniture and equipment - (2,172,442) - (2,172,442)
- Publicity and public education expenses (218,414) - - (218,414)
48 _
wE (218.414) (2370000) - (2588414) Total (218,414)  (2,370,000) - (2,588,414)
7200443 431H 221,586 - 55,659 277,245 At 315t March 2004 221,586 i 55,659 277,045
BREWSEERIERALABS: Transfer to the statement of income and
- REBRABTELREE expenditure as income to match with:
b R = - _ ~ ~ _ - Depreciation of fixed assets financed by
f’j Eﬁné E%{T&% = government capital subventions - - - -
B %W‘&E‘X%E@' Sk ) - - ) - Other charges for furniture and equipment - - - -
-EERARHBE L (17,535) - (33,750) (51,285) - Publicity and public education
expenses (17,535) - (83,750) (51,285)
ey (17,535) ~ (33,750) (51,285) Total (17,535) - (83,750) (51,285)
______________________________ At 31st March 2005 204,051 - 21,909 225,960
R2005F3A31H 204,051 - 21,909 225,960

BAMBESHE AT WM FRFEBNEAM B ERERNGES  ESELS A BNARRIT
AWALRBAMW S EER L -

The capital subvention fund represents the unutilised balance of non-recurrent government capital subvention
received for special projects. The funds are released to the statement of income and expenditure as income to

match the related costs.
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9. RHI&E 9. Long term liabilities
H (@) Provision for long service and severance payment
(a) REIRE© MIEMBRERE 2005 Soon 2005 2004
HK$ HK$
T B
L ol S
gﬁﬁﬁﬁaiﬁzéﬁ (2,411) 24,007 Amount paid during the year s o
7N = N M7 AR - -
- - At 31st March 163,669 166,080
R3H31H 163,669 166,080
(b) Provision for staff gratuity
2005 2004
(b) BB A E L
HK$ HK$
2005 2004
B B At 1st April 8,451,810 5,959,344
4818 8,451,810 5,959,344 Provisions made: 7,200,925 6,826,015
5|
ﬁE&EﬁEiﬁZi (2,420,620) (4,333,549) At 31st March 13,232,115 8,451,810
MR3H31H 13,232,115 8,451,810 Less: amount due within one year included in current liabilities (11,195,500) (1,240,196)
B BRERSHEEN —FRIHz S5 (11,195,500) (1,240,196)
L.ong term portion 2,036,615 7,211,614
REAELD 2,036,615 7,211,614
Provision for staff gratuity is set up for the gratuity payments which will be payable to employees of the Commission
B S 4SS B RS S NS T i R B - REBe SR S EA L (B8 LS 4R who complete their three year contracts commmencing from the date of their employment.
=y sz RY< E < e A BE f— = i =5 =Ry

MR °

10. Government subvention received in advance

10. TR B AT 7 B

The subvention is received in advance in connection with various services to be provided after year end.

AW BTREE) - A S ENFRET TR RS -

11. Subvention surplus account payable to Government

Balance under this heading represents the amount above the cap of the new reserve account as set out in note 7
and needs to be refunded to Government in the following financial year, except when the approval of the Secretary
for Home Affairs (“SHA”) has been received after consultation with the Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury (“SFST”) or when the ceiling of reserve is raised by the SHA following consultation with the SFST.

1. B BT B B sk

ERETHREEBLT 7 B LR - WEEITFRN T —EANRFEREBN - RIEEH
EE&?%%%E %f:ﬁnu u@ﬁﬁ%\%$%&}$%%%§?§mﬁt;ﬁ ’ EZ?%EEK%?%%%E %\%nu nﬁjﬁﬁ%\%$%&
BRRRRRESFHERLR -

In previous years, the amount represented the remaining portion of the surplus, if any, for which the Government’s
approval for keeping as the Commission’s reserves has not been received.

ERAEFE  EREDARIIBFIERRE TR B SRENNBIRERER
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12. EEHN AT 12. Commitments under operating leases

At 31st March, the Commission had future aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

R=ZA=+—B  ZESAR NMIHES R LEF 2 Nl uE 2 X O MBS 2 AR&EHEE

LEINT
2005 2004 2005 2004
B el HKS HKS
—FR B 2,670,066 Not later than one year - 2,670,066
—F 2N AFR - - Later than one year and not later than five years - -

- 2,670,066 - 2,670,066

13. BRERBRME

13. Notes to the cash flow statement

82

(a) LERPHESAANFRAN B EE RS HIREK (@) Reconciliation of surplus for the year to net cash inflow from operating activities
2005 2004
SE K SE ik 2005 2004
B E RS 11,834,185 9,248,172 HKS HKS
B S ) [E E & E 343,852 1,066,444 Surplus for the year 11,834,185 9,248,172
2 U A (344,496) (233,758) Fixed assets written off for the year 343,852 1,066,444
Interest income (344,490) (233,758)
M EEESEB A L LR 11,833,541 10,080,858 . . .
N i T ' ' ' ' Operating surplus before working capital changes 11,833,541 10,080,858
PR E@%@,%M@%ﬁ;‘ﬂjz/)&% . 2,203,075 357,985 Decrease in gratuity subvention receivable from Government 2,203,075 357,985
JEBBR AT I ARE B E BB 2 B D /(ER) 161,411 (223,108) Decrease/(increase) in unutilised annual leave subvention
HA IR « e RFANFRIBEZEE (31,257) (258,263) | receivable f;ﬁm Governtr)rlwentd < t 1(21 421; ; ) ggg ; ggg
< = 3 /) ncrease in other receivables, deposits and prepayments , ,
FEELIFEIE —.—fﬁ?ﬁﬁgf\p‘f%ﬁﬁz/ﬂ/ (1,595,773) (1,844,141) Decrease in accounts payable, provisions and accruals (1,595,773) (1,844,141)
R %’U}%M@?’\JETEZ% = 4,780,305 2,492,466 Increase in provision for staff gratuity 4,780,305 2,492,466
KEAERNEGBZRLD)EE (161,411) 223,108 (Decrease)/increase in provision for unutilised annual leave (161,411) 223,108
FEUR R T B 2 1 =/ OR ) 1.335.800 (613,257) Increase/(decrease) in Government subvention received in advance 1,335,800 (613,257)
- ' ’ ’ Increase in subvention surplus account payable to Government 2,968,311 10,572,362
}Eﬁ@ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬂﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁZ% & 2,968,311 10,572,362 Decrease in capital subvention fund (61,285) (2,588,414)
BEXRmEPES 2R (51,285) (2,588,414) (Decrease)/increase in provision for long service and
RERB S MEMEBENERB 2 (RD)/IEE (2,411) 24,007 Tseve}rancde payrrl;ent I y 2,411) 24,007
& ZS i A< TR B B s ransferred to subvention surplus account payable
z\—%%glgﬁmﬁﬁﬂ BRI (1 ;Sgg;?i) (10,572,362) to Government (11,834,185) (10,572,362)
B ' ' B Increase in reserves 8,865,874 -
BERDREANFR 18,471,995 7,651,241 Net cash inflow from operating activities 18,471,995 7,651,241
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13. BERBKRMETE) 13. Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)
(b) B I E S RS BB DT (b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year
RN IR Capital subvention fund
2005 2004 2005 2004
s s HKS S
R4/ 18 - 2,865,659 At 1st Aori
= pril - 2,865,659
BMAHMEE - (2,865,659) Transfer to other liabilities - (2,865,659)
AT Bh 2 IR & - - Cash inflow from government grant - -
Bl EEEFERY$% - _ Amount utilised during the year
MR3A31H L D At 31st March
14. WREZ®E 14. Approval of accounts
WIEREBREZEEZENRN _SEERF +—AtHZE - The accounts were approved by the Commission Members on 7th November 2005.
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TEMSETESEE
(Bl Z£2005%3H31H)

BEBEE =7
Mr. TANG Yee-bong, Raymond
Chairperson

BihREE Z8

Mr. John Robertson BUDGE
M.B.E., J.P.

Member

—d

Rkt £5
Ms. CHAN Yu
Member

RE&ZE £8
Ms. Gloria CHANG
Member

O

K

AxHHE Z5

Prof. CHOW Wing-sun, Nelson
M.B.E., S.B.S,, J.P.

Member

BHEERTL £

Ms. KO Po-ling
Member

-
it
!

)

Lﬁ,

| .

nEMEE =5

Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph
JIP

Member

Members of the Equal Opportunities Commission

(as at 31.3.2005)

Y
l h’i}’

HAERXL £5

RBAFHRE £8
Mrs. LAM PEI Yu-dja, Peggy Mrs. LING LAU Yuet-fun, Laura
G.B.S., OB.E, J.P. Member
Member

BXaH® £58 Emwkt £8
Prof. Japhet Sebastian LAW Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla
Member Member

EREXT £5
The Hon. LI Fung-ying

B.B.S., M.B.E,, J.P.
Member Member

RRHREEE =5
Dr. WU Wai-yung, Raymond

G.B.S.,OBE, JP.

BEB%E £5
Mr. YEUNG Kwok-ki, Anthony
Member

‘I
r
3%

BRARE £5

Mr. YEUNG Kong-hing, Peter
J.P.

Member

£BHLE £
Ms. YU Sau-chu, Jessie
Member
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TEREZESET/NENERBIEZIE #@Zz2005438318)
Membership & Terms of Reference of the Committees of the
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2005)

TRRHEERH

54=

1 BBEEE (BEA)

2 MERELE

3 EEHE

4 FRRLZL

5 BEFELE

6 ImEzt

7 RMEEEAL

HEgEE

1 BREESENFERXEENR-

2 ZEANHEZSSEZNERC

3 BEREEENIREBRRIBRABEIRES -

4 EREEETINFERSIR-

5 BRITHZHETHREBNEIAEZEBER

6 HEESERILENSIERLEE/ M URBARE /A
fEHREERS

7 PEEEHRREISHIULNESEIIBE/NE UREB
BB NEFHRER -

8 MERIRLEFEHFAREISEIULNEENSER
FTER-

9 BBRTHRZHERSHANEZETFEERRERS -

10 BEESEERBEMRLES -

1M1 EHRINEESNES RITBHE-

12 BEREE - BHEIABEZSERLAENEBRRTERRKE

eiif:

Administration and Finance Committee

Membership

1

2

3

Mr. YEUNG Kong-hing, Peter (Convenor)
Mrs. LAM PEI Yu-dja, Peggy

Prof. Japhet Sebastian LAW

The Hon. LI Fung-ying

Mr. YEUNG Kwok-ki, Anthony

Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla

Dr. WU Wai-yung, Raymond

Terms of Reference
1

10

11

12

To review the draft Annual Estimates of Expenditure of the
Commission.

To consider and approve donations to the Commission.

To review the draft statements of accounts of the
Commission and the auditor’s reports.

To review the draft annual report on the activities of the
Commission.

To review the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangements and any proposed amendments thereof.

To set up tender boards in relation to matters connected
with the work of the Commission and to approve such
recommendations as are made by these boards.

To set up recruitment boards in relation to staff employed
at MPS Point 45 and above and to approve such
recommendations as are made by these boards.

To advise on matters related to further employment or
termination of service in relation to staff employed at MPS
point 45 and above.

To approve reports for quarterly reviews under the
Memorandum of Administrative Arrangements.

To make recommendations to the Commission in respect
of the appointment of an auditor.

To keep the staffing and administrative policies of the
Commission under review.

To advise and to approve recommendations in relation to
the leasing, renewal or acquisition of the Commission’s
office accommodation.

FEMRELZESET/NARBERBESE @zE200543A310)
Membership & Terms of Reference of the Committees of the
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2005)

HEEHRENSRIE

5 4=]

1 REEHZL (B&EA)

2 MEERELZL

3 BEERXE

4 DREPEL

5 ZFRRZT

6 Izt

7 REL®KZL

8 ERERLL (EGEZES)

BEEE

1 BEDFERSIERERVERATER UEBHER
RBRAEE

2 BERFRIFBUTAS(BEEIREREIIER) BT
EEETFER

3 gﬁ%%@E%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%%%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ

4 BINERZESENEETFEREGENBRERNBELETER

5 %ﬁ%é%%tﬁmyQ»@ﬁmqﬁﬁﬁmmﬁamﬁ

6 HEREEBRAENEEHE 2R ZRMMESFLER
MEEREEEZBNERFE-

7 ERQARHZEESEINRE ROZESSEFENE

|'E|'_|o

Community Participation and Publicity
Committee

Membership

1

2

Ms. Gloria CHANG (Convenor)
Mrs. LAM PEI Yu-dja, Peggy
Ms. KO Po-ling

Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph
The Hon. LI Fung-ying

Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla
Ms. YU Sau-chu, Jessie

Ms. LAl Sau-ling (Co-opted Member)

Terms of Reference

1

To advise on measures to foster community participation
in promoting equal opportunities and eliminating
discrimination.

To advise on measures for liaison with government bodies
and non-government organizations including employment
establishments and concern groups.

To advise on measures for developing corporate
partnership in promoting equal opportunities policy.

To advise on measures to strengthen publicity and media
relations of the Commission.

To receive reports on actions taken by the EOC office in
pursuance of (1), (2), (3) and (4) above.

To consider and approve funding applicationsin connection
with promotion and publicity projects to be undertaken by
community organizations within the budgetary confines as
approved by the Home Affairs Bureau from time to time.

To monitor community response to the Commission’s
work and make recommendations to the Commission on

the way forward.
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TEREZESET/NENERBIEZIE #@Zz2005438318)
Membership & Terms of Reference of the Committees of the
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2005)

LABHERARERNE

54=1

1 SEB®zE (B&EA)

2 SREEENEL

3 FREiZzt

4 BEEEE

5 REBRZL

6 FEXIHEE

7 BUERLE (BRES)

R REETE

1 AZEEYEINSBEETARIEEMRINERATE
E’O

2 HZESCHRINBEESHE oA BENEBREZEEN
HMERE-

3 HKZESCHIMNBESHECAN B2fEBREZEENE
HE N

4 ENZEEREEEBARHAENMEENETSZTENT
{ERE o

5

EHNEESAEYRTETNARAB AR BINTIEE
RERE o

Public Education and Research Committee

Membership

1

2

3

4

Ms. KO Po-ling (Convenor)

Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph
Ms. CHAN Yu

Mr. YEUNG Kwok-ki, Anthony
Ms. YU Sau-chu, Jessie

Prof. CHOW Wing-sun, Nelson

Mr. CHAN Yun-kan (Co-opted Member)

Terms of Reference

1

To advise on measures to be taken in conducting public
education on issues of concern to the Commission.

To consider and approve training modules of the
Commission within the budgetary confines as determined
by the Commission from time to time.

To consider and approve research projects of the
Commission within the budgetary confines as determined
by the Commission from time to time.

To receive reports from the EOC office on the
commissioning of projects in public education and
research.

To receive progress reports on public education
and research undertaken or commissioned by the
Commission.

FEMRELZESET/NARBERBESE @zE200543A310)
Membership & Terms of Reference of the Committees of the
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2005)

ERRRRER M
54=1

1 EEBEE (BEA)
2 BffREE BIBEA)
3 BREmZE

4 REEHZT

5 ZMEEEL

6 MEEZELL

7 &EBRFLL

8 Izt

9 IBBmEEE

BEEE

1

HAMTERSZESRE (MBISURRAG) E88lk - (5=
FRIBARIRBI) 55851 K (K BER L B AR IR BI) SE661RET LAY
BRAIELER-

EHNERABRERTRE (MR KRKEAG) F844% -
(BRIRIZARIRA) 588015k K (REER (LR R AI) 621K
B FERERES R HERPRNAURERG R BIN
HEAMEFERERES-

EREBRE (ERIAR R 5£84(4) % » CRRIEBRIF
BI) 5580 (4) 5k} (R BE R LB RIRBI) 5562(4)IREA L EAE
HERIERFNETHERRULFAENRENRSE LS
FEHERES-

EHAESHRARE (MERIERED) B84k (BRER
1RAI) E80MR K (RER (LR RIRH]) H62RIZHAYBEFE
BEREHA AR ERNRE -

ZERE (R RRAG]) £851%  (FRKBARIEH) F
8RR (RER LB ARIRG]) 563 R ERFAR LU/ BI Y
i WERRBEER A T2EE -

BRRTVTEHEREERBETEARNENRATHE-

Legal and Complaints Committee

Membership

1

2

3

Mr. TANG Yee-bong, Raymond (Convenor)

Mr. John Robertson BUDGE (Deputy Convenor )
Ms. CHAN Yu

Ms. Gloria CHANG

Dr. KWOK Kin-fun, Joseph

Mrs. LAM PEI Yu-dja, Peggy

Mrs. LING LAU Yuet-fun, Laura

Ms. WONG Pui-sze, Priscilla

Mr. YEUNG Kong-hing, Peter

Terms of Reference

1

To recommend to the EOC rules to be made under section
88 of SDO, section 85 of DDO and section 66 of FSDO.

To receive reports on the assistance by way of conciliation
provided by conciliators to persons lodging complaints
in writing with the EOC pursuant to section 84 of SDO,
section 80 of DDO and section 62 of the FSDO and to
keep the EOC informed accordingly.

To receive reports on the decisions made by the
Chairperson, pursuant to section 84(4) of SDO, section
80(4) of DDO and section 62(4) of the FSDO, not to
conduct or to discontinue an investigation into an act
the subject of a complaint and to keep the EOC informed
accordingly.

To receive reports from conciliators in respect of cases
where there has not been a settlement of the matter to
which an act the subject of a complaint lodged pursuant
to section 84 of SDO, section 80 of DDO and section 62
of the FSDO relates.

To consider applications made under section 85 of
SDO, section 81 of DDO and section 63 of the FSDO for
assistance other than by way of conciliation and to grant
such applications it thinks fit.

To advise the EOC on terms of reference to conduct a
formal investigation.
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Membership & Terms of Reference of the Committees of the
Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2005)

7 BEXBERENSHAEER UHRBRSUFEREERE 7
TR BERTEKERESFES-

To make preliminary findings in a formal investigation and Ff& Chairperson
prepare a report of such for the consideration of the EOC, |
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g
PMEHITEA QTSRS RESFER-

including making recommendations to the EOC.

[

[ I

1

8 T « dati to the EOC | t of th F AR =R SRR B RITEE
s —s N N 0 make recommendations 1o the In respect or the S SRR e I R B R AR R S 1k AR 4R EERHKEHE
orEf g \ == TEHEMHMEETS N . . PN e
9 %gﬁ@g#ﬁ”ﬁgmﬁaa itm:F“%E'fE 2R TE issue of enforcement notices. Operations Legal Service Planning & Training & %@\\?%%%IE Ié
FETBANEFER ERREEFERNAE- Division Division Administration Consultancy Unit Policy Support & Promotion &
. . - n . 9 To receive reports on Comp“ance with enforcement Director I_egal Adviser Division Research Unit Education Unit
10 7;{}3%‘1 <<’|‘$EUJE£¥EJ{|7%{§IJ>> %81{|%Fﬁ¢5%?%%ﬁﬁgﬁi$ﬁ§i'|¢% notices and recommend to the EOC whether a formal Director Chief Equal Unit Head
. (F% y = & b 1ot g2 ) i 38 | =5 cha Opportunities Offi
2 ﬁﬁz%ﬁi\?ﬁ{%ﬁ”»5%73'%)5)??55’]; '%EE'JEHE ‘“%%:WM’W_ investigation should be conducted in the event of non- @”L( N pporunities Bieer
R (REERI (SR 1) EOOMPHENHRNERIRIAE (o iance. 28T 5As
78 -
2 Chief Equal
g, i 3 - . . 10 To decide on actions to be taken in respect of persistent Oppénunﬂ?es
M ’]3’EJS*{%;J);;Q(('%E;;{%?*T%&}@; {;{%%}ﬂiggﬁﬁf ﬁ g @DJ; discrimination or sexual harassment under section 81 of Officers
5 ENEAE R 2] VR E £ 2 ; i farriminati I
SDO, in respect of persistent discrimination, harassment . N " N o N o .
CHEBIBERARB) 43 4450451 - CREBIRIER]) H42- o vilfication tnder section 77 of DDO and in respect of (R ERE S xR 2R 1B SRS SEETERE
- A4TRABIE R (REER RBCRIERI) 231 32331 M1 tont discriminat : ik i W =t ik
43 544:5345\\“75 S persistent discrimination under section 59 of FSDO. 7 Senior Equal 3 Assistant 2 Senior Training 1 Senior Equal 3 Senior Equal
RRRLAELERRF - Opportunities Legal Advisers Consultants Opportunities Officer  Opportunities Officers
. - § . - 11 To decide on the proceedings to be brought in respect of Officers
12 DR (BRI Foot - CRRERMN) F63E 4 cortravention of sections 43. 44 o 45 of SDO. sections ‘
M5 - CRERBIRIER) Mi%2 3F5R (RER IR 0 - ’ +iE +iE 1 Tralining +iE s
32 e ) ST Al 4 o o £ e s FSDO, pursuant to section 82 of SDO, section 78 of DDO 6 Equal Opportunities 2 Equal Opportunities Consultant 1 Equal Opportunities 2 Equal Opportunities
giiw fi#2 BREE OFSHEZRRRISTHERN and section 60 of FSDO respectively. Officers Officers Officer Officers
% © ‘
= . - - . o i 12 To keep under review Schedules 3 and 5 of SDO, Zﬁjjﬁaz{f%@
13 DRIRIE LIS BURGI) Z64(1) ()R- CRRRRA) Schedules 2, 3 and 5 of DDO and Schedule 2 of FSDO > Assistant | w \
%62(:)@){'7!;& (REz Em&%ﬁtﬂﬁw %41(1)9)1'7'< : Tﬁﬁi and when necessary, recommend to the EOC proposals Equal Opportunities e TER Bz it
<<'IEEJ\ ﬁ%fﬁ{'ﬂf{ﬁw ;F@&Fﬁﬁgﬁgi& Sé-;}% rf]_{i{%ﬁﬂ"‘ for amending the schedules, in accordance with section Officers N Translation Accounts
Bl) BIBITIER ARER BT SHEZRERTISTHRE 66 of SDO, section 63 of DDO and section 45 of FSDO Planning, Administration & Section Office
By o respectively Personnel Section
| |
13 To keep under review the working of SDO, DDO and FSDO ISHRIEHE 1SR 1
and when necessary, recommend to the EOC proposals T Exes 1 Accountant
for amending the Ordinances in accordance with section 1 Senior Equal 1 Senior Chinese
64(1)(e) of SDO, section 62(1)(e) of DDO and section Opportunities Officer Language Officer
44(1)(d) of FSDO.
1 PEkeE 1R EE
*E 1 Chinese Language
1 Equal Opportunities Officer
Officer
\
18NIE B
*E
1 Assistant Computer
Officer
{
28HMNERTIEBE

28 Other Secretarial and Supporting Staff

3

1 @ESIBTIA (FREER) -

Note:

1 Total number of staff under establishment is 71(excluding EOC Chairperson).
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TEMEEZESHEREEIE /DA #EZ2005%F38310)

Management Team of the

Equal Opportunities Commission (as at 31.3.2005)

£
il

EREM
2]

HE RBERTH)
BRZE

EREE RER)
TR

HESREEE (MRITBRAR)
REX

FE (EEREHT)
EIE

Chairperson
TANG Yee-bong, Raymond

Legal Adviser
Alexandra PAPADOPOULOS

Director (Planning & Administration)
CHAN Yick-man, Michael

Acting Director (Operations)
LI Siu-kwai, Joseph

Chief Equal Opportunities Officer
(Policy Support & Research)
CHU Chung-man, Ferrick

Head (Promotion & Education)
LIU Jia-shin, Betty

ﬂ%%qe% AIX

R Rs A= 7 B

Applications for Legal Assistance

FAERAZESSFHIRFERERIIARNAL  WBRHEE
ek EEE M PHRAUEREE) - £2004/05F F ZEEE R
B3R ER B P BT RAFE2003/04FE W E

SEARFEWEIZORARE - EESSRHFET  EESM14RAHE
RHTIHE - HBBHEAEETE BFERZEESEMATERER
RBEE-THNERREE AEZESNRAREIMEELA
HEAEM EEFRATEETRBEANERRR -EESSH
EREEHBYNERSTHFOT:

The EOC is empowered to grant legal assistance to any
person considering legal proceedings in respect of a
complaint lodged and which has not received settlement.
In 2004/05, the EOC processed 53 such applications.
Seventeen of these 53 applications were received in
the 2003/04 reporting period, with the remaining 36
received in 2004/05. Assistance was granted in 14 of
the 53 applications. The assistance granted by the EOC
takes many forms, and can include legal advice by the
EOC’s lawyers, services to obtain further information or
evidence, or representation in legal proceedings by the
EOC'’s lawyers, or by barristers in private practice briefed
by the EOC. A general breakdown of the different types of
applications and their numbers appears below:

BHET TEHAET SECUN

SEEGE B BY BEHERE ZRF
{AZE (B E2004/05F E K 4E) Assistance Granted Assistance Not ~ Withdrawal Under
Cases (at the end of 2004/05) Granted by Applicant  Consideration
RRBR R SERE (ERE)
Disability Discrimination or Harassment (Employment) 5 14 0 4
TR AR S ERIE (HL M EEhs, iR E m R ARTE)
Disability Discrimination or Harassment
(Other Fields e.g. Provision of Goods and Services) 1 2 1 1
MHIRRNERE (BEEE)
Sex Discrimination or Harassment (Employment) 6 11 0 3
MR R ERE (R, R HE R K R)
Sex Discrimination or Harassment
(Other Fields, e.g. Provision of Goods and Services) 0 2 0 0
ISRAR RS (BB ERS) (RHE R RRT)
Marital Status Discrimination (Employment)
(Provision of Goods and Services) 2 0 0 0
FREERMRR (RAHE mRRE)
Family Status Discrimination
(Provision of Goods and Services) 0 1 0 0
me
Total (53) 14 30 1 8
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EAE BRI ES
Legally Assisted Cases

#£2004/055 & » B20RER BERBEEFAMS AR
(B4E2004/055F E s LARTE A F B BIAVESE) -

{2 Cases

In 2004/05, the following 20 cases (which include
cases granted legal assistance before and during
2004/05) were resolved without commencing legal
proceedings:

4R Outcome

BRI (ZRIBZIBRESFR)

Disability discrimination (less favourable in employment)

BHERNE  FRABRE

Parties settled on confidential terms.

BEER (ZEDAEZIZREFE)
Disability discrimination (less favourable in employment)

BHERMNE - RRATRE °

Parties settled on confidential terms.

RREE (ZEHEZIREGE)
Disability discrimination (less favourable in employment)

BLERNE  RRABRRE

Parties settled on confidential terms.

BRI (BRMSHHARE)

Disability discrimination (accessibility to a supermarket)

BHERNE  FRABRE

Parties settled on confidential terms.

SRR (R E)

Disability discrimination (termination of employment)

BHERMNE - RRATRE °

Parties settled on confidential terms.

IRREA (EAIRITRIE)

Disability discrimination (accessibility to banking facilities)

BLERNE  RRABRRE

Parties settled on confidential terms.

EEEHENERER (FE)
Disability discrimination in employment discrimination
(termination of employment)

BHERNE  FRABRE ©

Parties settled on confidential terms.

RIS CHIEEBRARE)

Disability discrimination (refusal of hotel services)

EHERNE  RRRBRE °
Parties settled on confidential terms.

BiESEEERER

Sexual Harassment in employment

ZESKE-—SHRIBEE  RETHTIEERL -
Commission withdrew assistance in light of
further examination of evidence.

RREE (E)

Disability discrimination (termination of employment)

ZEERE-—SHRIBEE  RETHTEERE -
Commission withdrew assistance in light of
further examination of evidence.

FERVKR (FE)

Family status discrimination (termination of employment)

ZEERE-—SHRBER  RETH T EERE -
Commission withdrew assistance in light of
further examination of evidence.

HRIKE (FE)

Sex Discrimination (termination of employment)

ZESRE—DMRBEER  RETR T EEHL -
Commission withdrew assistance in light of
further examination of evidence.

RS (E)

Disability discrimination (termination of employment)

BHERNE  RRABRE

Parties settled on confidential terms.

BRREAR (RE)

Disability discrimination (termination of employment)

BB AR IRER ©
Applicant withdrew.

RERBVER (EERVEREE)

Family status discrimination (employee posting policy)

EXREEEBNARBEGSEERE
Employer clarified posting policy in line with
legal requirement.

EESRAEERE

Sexual harassment in employment

BFERMNR  FRRBRE °
Parties settled on confidential terms.

BEHENRREEER (FIRELE)
Disability discrimination in education
(expulsion from school)

BHERNE  RRABRE °

Parties settled on confidential terms.

RBER (BE)

Pregnancy discrimination (termination of employment)

BFHERMNRE  RRABRRE o
Parties settled on confidential terms.

BRARESR (EREM)

Disability discrimination (refusal of employment)

ZESRE—SMRIBEE  REFH T EEWDHE -
Commission withdrew assistance in light of
further examination of evidence.

REBMER GRBALREEBERE)
Family status discrimination (posting arrangement and
constructive dismissal)

BHERNE - RRABTRE °

Parties settled on confidential terms.

bbb £2004/055F F  REBTRE T BIMRESFES UM SERBEINMER -
ELERBANDERET BEAFELARE SLEARERTE WRBRAEMER
BRFe

Additionally, in 2004/05, the EOC also dealt with nine other cases which
had been granted legal assistance before and during 2004/05. These
cases are still being handled and, as at the end of 2004/05, no outcome
had yet been reached nor had any court proceedings commenced.

INEE

Appendix /

S

Court Cases

F£2004/05F E R B Z S S B RBIFRFAMNRM

{E1Z Cases

EOC assisted court cases which commenced before

2004/05:

1557 Status

RN RIS R E N E R ER BB B HBE M F HER IR

Disability discrimination in recruitment by a disciplinary service
on the grounds of a family history of mental iliness

B 1E2004/05F EERB L - RDZERES ©
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/05.

BRER (REREFERERE)
Pregnancy discrimination
(less favourable treatment and termination of employment)

B 1E2004/05F EERB L - RDERES ©
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/05.

EREENRRER

Disability discrimination in employment

B 1E2004/05F EERBLE - RDEERES ©
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/05.

BT LRER ¢

{EZ Cases

Assisted cases in appeal proceedings:

1557 Status

ZERIBREIRZER

Pregnancy discrimination in recruitment by an old aged home

WEARE LR
Appeal by Defendant

B 1E2004/05F EER B L » RADERES ©
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/05.

F£2004/05F EEZ S 2 HBIRMAFRANRM

{812 Cases

EOC assisted court cases which commenced in 2004/05:

155 Status

BERRERVER (FEE)
Pregnancy and family status discrimination
(termination of employment)

B 1E2004/05F EER B LE » RDERES ©
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/2005.

SRR ()
Disability discrimination (termination of employment)

REABHEFR (AESSRAFHE)
Judgment for the Plaintiff (assisted by the EOC).

BERFERBVER (ZRREFBRERE)
Pregnancy and family status discrimination
(less favourable treatment and termination of employment)

BLERME  RRATRE ©

Parties settled on confidential terms.

BRI (B {E)

Disability discrimination (termination of employment)

BLERME  RRATRE o

Parties settled on confidential terms.

REMMER (EREBETERERE)

Family status discrimination

(overtime work requirement and termination of employment)

B 1E2004/05F EAERBLE » RIFDEREF o
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/05.

BRERREREVESR (BE)
Pregnancy and family status discrimination
(termination of employment)

BERNR  RRABRRE ©
Parties settled on confidential terms.

RRER (REREFBNEE)
Disability discrimination
(less favourable treatment and termination of employment)

£ 1E2004/05F EARBLE - REDEREF o
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/05.

IR (B {E)

Disability discrimination (termination of employment)

BHERMNBE  RRABRE ©
Parties settled on confidential terms.

REKR (BE)

Pregnancy discrimination (termination of employment)

B 1E2004/05F EERB L - RADERER ©
Ongoing as at the end of 2004/05.
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FERSEZ 2SR EIFTEBRIHEE (2004/2005)
List of Organizations Funded under the Community
Participation Funding Programme (2004/2005)

RINER
BB EHERNRH BB
DAIERIS

BB MM TH R
BEEBFAHERL
ESTEEENEFRELEN
(RERE D FHARBR)

BSh R ERHETRENAN

pER

iz

T A

AL B AR
ENHSREEES BB

M2 R - FREERAREFH L
ERUBEHENRANEDAOERES
BESHEFEDRAL
BERAARFE DR

HEREAB O
BBERERINREEE S FHE L
ERTHRMSR

EREIRRESL

EEHEARGE
BERHEEER G
BBERGAEHS

EERLDOHE

BEEREHRED
EBRERUREHE — ARRAHEDL
BERER AR RS EAERGA RO
EBEMSHEVEE S E P
BBERSHRERE D FHARHE L
EBERHE

EBEERLEFR

BEEEER

HEHBHHE

BHLEEE B
e i

Organization

Aberdeen Kai-fong Welfare Association Social
Service Centre

Bravo Theatre
Caritas Asian Migrant Workers Social Service Project
Caritas Community Centre — Aberdeen

Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Centre
(Integrated Team)

Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong, Kornhill Centre
Civil Rights for Sexual Diversities

Concealed Life

Fei Ngan Kindergarten

Fu Hong Society / Community Mental Health Link

H.K. & Kowloon Kaifong Women’s Association
Sun Fong Chung College

Harmony House — Community Education
and Resource Centre

Haven of Hope Christian Service
— Ming Tak Day Centre and Hostel

Heep Hong Society Fanling Parents Resource Centre

Heep Hong Society Tai Hang Tung Parents
Resource Centre

Heep Hong Society Tai Wo Hau Centre

HKPHAB Peng Chau Neighbourhood Elderly
cum Children & Youth Centre

Hong Chi Morninglight School, Yuen Long

Hong Chi Winifred Mary Cheung Morninghope School
Hong Kong Association for Community Inclusion

Hong Kong Association for Specific Learning Disabilities
Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association

Hong Kong Federation of Women’s Centres

Hong Kong Lutheran Centre For The Disabled

Hong Kong Lutheran Social Service
— Shek Kip Mei Lutheran Centre for the Blind

Hong Kong Lutheran Social Service
Yung Shing Lutheran Integrated Service Centre

Hong Kong Playground Association Choi Ha Children
& Youth Centre

Hong Kong Playground Association Integrated Service
For Children & Youth — Tsing Yi

Hong Kong Single Parents Association

Hong Kong Young Women's Christian Association
Hong Kong Youth Institute

Lok Kwan Social Service

Ma On Shan St. Joseph's Primary School

New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

T e E SR B FTE B (2004/2005)
List of Organizations Funded under the Community
Participation Funding Programme (2004/2005)

ERBHRMAERREBP O
BEBERIRRERAREHES O
EASFEERAPOLREZHRERF O
REM (EWER) / HRER (HilEE)
ERPEABHEFENAFTOFINREE TERK
ERELAEFHL () FLFHEERBHL
BERENELEFR
BEXEpHERRHYME
BRIV ERSEEFERRNBTLFRSRB PO
BB ERSZENETLFRERBHO
ERNERSEEMNREFR O
TEEEBHEEEERBERP O
BUMESERRSBTLFREH O
EBRESEXEH
BBERS
HAFERERBESEIITERBH O
BREEHEEETIERES
RE=GEEARTERB AR
RE=[REFKFZEFR T
BEBE

Tuen Mun Training and Activity Centre
Patient Resource and Social Centre, Kwai Chung Hospital

Pok Oi Hospital Mrs. WONG TUNG YUEN
District Elderly Community Centre

S.K.H.Lady MacLehose Centre Family Activity
and Resource Centre

ShamChing Youth Association / Opensource Association

Shatin Youth Outreaching Social Work Team
Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong

SKH Ma On Shan (South) Children & Youth
Integrated Services Centre

St. Antonius Primary School (A.M)
St. Monica’s Kindergarten Parent-Teacher Association

The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
— Jockey Club Sau Mau Ping Children and
Youth Integrated Centre

The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
Fanling Youth Integrated Service Centre

The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
Wong Chuk Hang Children Centre

The Church of Christ in China Kei Shun Speical School

The Church of United Brethren in Christ Whampoa
Integrated Children and Youth Service Centre

The Hong Kong Lesbian and Gay Film Festival Society
The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

The Pentecostal Holiness Church Hong Kong
Conference Gilead Social Service Centre

The Spastics Association of Hong Kong Erik Kvan
Workshop and Hostel

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Cho Tong
Day Care Centre for the Elderly

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Lui Wing Cheung
Children Centre

Youth Kwun Tong
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Appendix 9

2004/05F E PSS RAF

Our Partners in Equal Opportunities (2004/2005)

EBRZPOBERERLAEE N
2%EHE BBER/FER)
NRZHES

EBLEHES

RER (BAEREFHEEEEER)
MELB(PEENERAAEKES)
RS E (WEEEEER — EMEGR)
BRBRRHE

#5575 B $R Career Times
HEHEERERE

RERFEERR

EBETAR

NKEBKR

N EEIE

FEESHERAF

HEEAR

NEHE

RREERE

HIEBSEARAT

BEE

BEORERALHE

BELELT RRERKRIBRERR)
BEGER

MEE ( [FEMEE] SR
FRPRE 2R

MEZR

BERIREBYE

HEE

A=E FEBREEKRR)
REE¥R
EBRIHLTIERESS
EBMEREHS

EERERES

BRDBES
EAREXEHREEERS
EBEREFHE

BBRBERS

ERISHAS

EREEg

ERLETHRE
EBOHREEABHE

Advisory Committee on AIDS, Hong Kong Federation of Women'’s
Centres

Alice LAU (Commissioner of Inland Revenue)
Association for the Advancement of Feminism
Association of Women with Disabilities Hong Kong

Benny CHEUNG (Chairperson of Board of Directors, Hong Kong
Federation of Handicapped Youth)

Betty YUEN (Managing Director, CLP Power Hong Kong Limited)
Bonnie SMITH (Assistant Commissioner of Police, Information System)
Business Environment Council

Career Times

Caritas Community Development Service

Chinese Cuisine Training Institute

City University of Hong Kong

Civil Service Bureau

Civil Service Training and Development Institute

CLP Power Hong Kong Limited

Commercial Radio

Community Business

Curriculum Development Institute

Cyberport Management Limited

Department of Health

Direction Association for the Handicapped

Dr. Sarah LIAO (Secretary for the Environment, Transport and Works)
Education and Manpower Bureau

Edward LAM (Artistic Director, Edward Lam Dance Theatre)
Forest Union

Harmony House

Health, Welfare and Food Bureau

Heep Hong Society

HO Ka-lai (Ex-member, Hong Kong Fencing Team)

Home Affairs Bureau

Hong Kong Catholic Commission for Labour Affairs

Hong Kong Council of Social Service

Hong Kong Democratic Foundation

Hong Kong Epilepsy Association

Hong Kong Family Link Mental Health Advocacy Association
Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth

Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce

Hong Kong Girl Guides Association

Hong Kong Internet Professionals Association

BESREHERO
EBFETRAEHS
EBBERMEAT
BEAEIRE

EBEEHE

BREBRHE

BBREREE

EBEHRER

EB LEELRT
BEBANEREEES
EBEEHBEEMR
BEREEBRALENEERE)
KEEEE

NERLHE
EEAEETES

EEAR
2EE(FEFELRAHES)
SEBHERBE
20045 R AEMEES
ERERBAERRIER O
EBYBEEEAEHS
EEBER

EBEEHSA
EBERARREHE

MRS

EREEHS

BLHACH DB ERER DR EFERITHRAR)

EREHERAGE
BBHrEREEDE
LN
BREME

EN YN PN
BEBRE
BREBMRAR
RERRBRATE
EBnE

RE=GEARGERXERETLEES

E3-{- Y-
RUEBEES

Hong Kong Lutheran Centre for the Disabled
Hong Kong News Executives’ Association
Hong Kong Policy Research Institute

Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Hong Kong Rehab Power

Hong Kong Single Parents Association
Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation

Hong Kong Trade Development Council
HSBC

Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education

James WONG (Headmaster, International School of Flower
Arrangement)

Jumbo Kids Theatre

Kowloon Women’s Organizations Federation
Legal Education Trust Fund

Lingnan University

LIU Guozhu (Chief Instructor) Food Preparation, Chinese
Cuisine Training Institute

Lok Kwan Social Service

Organizing Committee of Mental Health Month 2004

Patient Resource and Social Centre, Kwai Chung Hospital

Hong Kong Professional Teachers’ Union

Radio Television Hong Kong

Rehabilitation Alliance Hong Kong

Retina Hong Kong

Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong

Scout Association of Hong Kong

Simon KWOK (Chairman & CEO, Sa Sa International Holdings
Limited)

SKH Diocesan Welfare Council

Society for the Relief of Disabled Children

The Chinese University of Hong Kong

The Law Society of Hong Kong

The Open University of Hong Kong

The University of Hong Kong

The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology

Towngas

Transport Department

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Cho Tong Integrated
Vocational Rehabilitation Centre cum Hostel

University of Oslo
Women’s Commission
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BPRHEBEMEEREHLE UBBERNEERIHS TR, RMNREEEREROT:
We pledge to serve the community to the best of our abilities. We are committed to providing a
courteous, helpful and efficient service. The service standard and the performance target we aim to

achieve are as follows:

102

ARG 1512
(ERRIBENE A LL)

PRI AEAE Performance Target
Service Standard (% meeting standard)

#Fi Enquiry

- EWRARRBARESFEEH ISR 95%
Answer telephone enquiries during office hours immediately

- ERIMEEEHNAL 300 ER 95%
Interview a walk-in enquirer at EOC office within 30 minutes

- DEHENEEESN 5 TERA 95%
Reply to written enquiries on simple issues within 5 working days

- DEERNEEEH 14ETERA 95%
Reply to written enquiries on complex issues within 14 working days

#iF Complaint

- HEERFEABEREITE MEIEXRA 100%
Initiate action on a written complaint within 3 working days

- RENZHERBEEREIRFHAL 5ETEXRA 95%
Interview a prospective complainant asking for  within 5 working days
an appointment

- EREBRSFER 618 A A 75%
Conclude a complaint case within 6 months

512138 Legal Assistance

- BHCERBEIM AL EERE 3ER A 85%
Make a decision and inform an applicant of within 3 months
the outcome of application for legal assistance

AR BT REM Public Education and Promotion

- RHEBRTVSHERERELINERE 6EZ R 95%
Meet requests for talks on within 6 weeks
equal opportunity issues and legislation

- BETRUBSIEEZMZEESHY 3ETERA 95%

Meet requests by mail or fax for
EOC publications

within 3 working days






